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ler g™
.Ha‘lf‘ of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Ijimited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it
is my pleasure to present you the Group’s audited annual results
for the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 (the “Period” or
“Fiscal Year 2014/15”).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Period, the Group reported a turnover of approximately
HK$406.7 million (Year ended 30 June 2014 (“Year 2014"):
HK$136.2 million) and net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$297.5 million (Year 2014: HK$72.6
million). During the Fiscal Year 2014/15, the Group’s performance
in financial assets investment largely improved and recognised a
profit of approximately HK$397.7 million (Year 2014: HK$134.7
million). In line with encouraging performance of the financial
assets investment, the performance of the Group’s investments
in bullion trading business improved during this Period. Profit of
approximately HK$2.2 million (Year 2014: loss of HK$56.9 million)
was shared to the Group in the Period. As a result of the improving
performance of financial assets investment and the outstanding
financial performance of CNI Bullion Limited, the Group’s net profit
significantly improved from HK$72.6 million for the Year 2014 to
profit HK$297.5 million for the Period.

During the Period, the Company raised funds from open offer,
which was approved at the extraordinary general meeting held on
11 June 2015, of approximately HK$338.7 million. The increase in
net asset value of the Group from approximately HK$686.2 million
as at 30 June 2014 to approximately HK$1,333.9 million was
principally attributable to the open offer and financial performance
of the Group for the Period as mentioned above.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

HITESHES

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

Fiscal Year 2014/15 is an exciting year to investors holding
securities listed in Hong Kong. Hang Seng Index moved from
23,191 at the end of June 2014 to the peak of 28,434 in April 2015,
but rolled down to the year-low of 20,846 in September 2015. The
performance of the Group’s listed investments affected significantly
accordingly. Even so, the Group has realized certain portion of
the listed investments before the stock market crash in the quarter
ended 30 September 2015, and net profit on listed investments
increased significantly from approximately HK$134.7 million for the
Year 2014 to approximately 397.7 million for the Period.

In contrast to the environment of low interest rate in years
before, it is widely expected that, should economic performance
in the US remain on track, the Federal Reserve will launch
the interest rate normalization sometime in the near future.
Accordingly, it is generally believed that US Dollars will continue
to appreciate in the year 2015 and coming years. However,
sharp depreciation of Renminbi in mid-August this year may
cause uncertainties of the pace of the aforesaid interest rate
normalization.

Although the gold price maintained low level between
approximately US$1,086 per ounce and US$1,350 per ounce
during the Period, many analysts expected that further significant
decrease of the gold price unlikely happen in short to medium
terms. This stimulated the bullion trading activities. As such,
the performance of the Group’s associate — CNI Bullion Limited
improved from loss of approximately HK$56.9 million during the
Year 2014 to profit of approximately HK$2.2 million for the Period
shared to the Group.

To diversify the portfolio risk, the Group has acquired three
new unlisted investments, details of which are stated in note 18 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements above. During the Period,
the Group has recorded net decrease in fair value of unlisted
investments of approximately HK$22.3 million, which principally
represented impairment loss on investment in Pure Power
Holdings Limited (“Pure Power”) of approximately HK$21.6 million.
Pure Power Group is principally engaged in the exploration and
exploitation of natural resources in the United State of America.
As the crude oil WTI (NYMEX) price dropped from approximately
US$100 per barrel in June 2014 to approximately US$40 per
barrel in September 2015, our investment in Pure Power Group,
decreased by HK$21.6 million during the Period.
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rec_overy and the hot wave of small-medium cap stocks in Hong
Kong, the Group has successfully raised approximately HK$338.7
million by way of open offer completed in July 2015. The issue
of new shares has contributed the resources to the Group in
generating positive income from the Group’s listed investments
during the Period.

Looking forward, we expect the global investment environment
is more complicated than that in the previous years. The
performance for global equity market in near future was expected
rather flattish, as Fed rate normalization and potential Renminbi
depreciation further kept investors staying risk-averse. We,
however, expect the fear of US and Renminbi rates moves will
gradually fade very soon. We will continue to adopt cautious
measures to manage the Group’s investment portfolio.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the Fiscal Year 2014/15. We would
also like to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our
shareholders and business partners for their continued support to
as well as their confidence in the Group.

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 December 2015
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEBE

Mr. Kong Fanpeng, aged 47, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 18 March 2010. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the
PRC. Mr. Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System
Limited and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He
also worked as the general manager of the PRC market and an
executive director respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong
Kong and Excalibur Securities Limited in Hong Kong, specialising
in risk averse arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong
capital market. Mr. Kong was the chairman and an executive
director of Shenzhen Wansheng Investment Management
Company Limited. He has a wealth of experience in the Hong
Kong securities market for over 24 years and is well versed in
investment in the second board market in both China and Hong
Kong. Mr. Kong is the chief partner of Shenzhen CAS Bright Stone
Investment Management Limited.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, aged 51, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 21 November 2012. He is one
of the responsible officers of China Everbright Securities (HK)
Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Chan
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of
Business Administration of the University of South Florida in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in
securities, fund management, corporate management, corporate
finance and managing listed investment companies under Chapter
21 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchanges.
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June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment

Limited (stock code: 1217), an investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr. Chan was an
independent non-executive director before 2009 and thereafter an
executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8220), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director
of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (stock code:
1226), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in
March 2011. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director
of China Investment Development Limited (stock code: 204), an
investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in May 2012.
Mr. Chan was also appointed as an executive director of China
New Economy Fund Limited (stock code: 80), an investment
company listed on the Stock Exchange, in June 2013.

Mr. Lam Kwan, aged 46, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 10 September 2003.
He obtained a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is currently a director of Charles
H.C. Cheung & CPA Limited. Mr. Lam is an independent non-
executive director of Pearl Oriental Oil Limited (Stock code: 632).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEBE

Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 42, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 20 January 2012, is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Ong received a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and a master’s degree in corporate finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ong has more than 20
years of experience in accounting, finance and company secretarial
fields and held senior positions in finance and company secretarial
departments in various listed companies listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong is an independent non-executive
director of China Environmental Resources Group Limited (stock
code: 1130), Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
(stock code: 1082), King Force Security Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8315), Larry Jewelry International Company Limited (stock
code: 8351), KSL Holdings Limited (stock code: 8170), WLS
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8021) and Wan Kei Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1718).

Mr. Ong was a director of Fitness Concept International
Holdings Limited prior to its dissolution. The said company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and was dissolved on 30 June
2005 by striking off due to cessation of business.

Mr. Lee Ming Gin, aged 30, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 6 March 2013. Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor Degree of Quantitative Finance from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is experienced in securities,
insurance advisory and fund management having been working
for several wealth and asset management firms. Mr. Lee was a
continuous education training tutor and is currently a director of the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong, and his professional
qualifications include Certified Financial Consultant, Certified
Financial Planner and member of the Hong Kong Securities
Institution.

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

ITFWMAEE 42 BT —F—A-+tBEL
EARRBUNTES  REBGHAEEER
BFHAREAMACERGE BEEERBEARET
HERBSLEBMMEBETIASLEREE T B0 o
FTHREBEBBB20FEF  MBERARMELR &£
BEHRBEXAERLTARNSBITRARWES
BAZE - TEEATPRBRBEREEBER AT (KK
5% - 1130) - BAHE (BB REEEBAR AR (R
DR - 1082) « BIERELIERAR AT (RH AR
8315) - EXBERABKEER AR (RH KK : 8351)
KSL Holdings Limited (A& {n 155 : 8170) ~ JEMEIERR B
FRARE (RS : 8021) RAEEBIERAR QR (IR
MR 1718) 2B FEHITESE o

T 54 & BFitness Concept International Holdings
Limited R EE B ATV E S - Z A BIRF SRS ML
BR-ZZETRFNA-tTHRERELSEMBEAR

THEXRE 305 AT =—FZANHERT
RRARBULFRITEFT - FTERERFBEBRIKRES
ECRBELTELN - FTHRACRERVEREEER
AR REF - RE -  ESEBRFELREE - F
EEDREBNBEREMBp SIS ELEERIZEM ]
BEBUBREMPpE2ES BABAZEEER
BESTEMREN RAUVBRIMEEEFZSFZ

=

Annual Report 2014/15 &3



10

e
I IAL REVIEW

. F’or the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 (the
“Period” or “Fiscal Year 2014/15”), the Group reported a turnover
of approximately HK$406.7 million (Year ended 30 June 2014
(“Year 20147): HK$136.2 million) and net profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$297.5 million
(Year 2014: HK$72.6 million). The significant improvement in
the Group’s turnover and the net result are principally due to the
outstanding performance of listed securities held by the Group.
The Group recorded a net profit of investment in listed securities
of approximately HK$397.7 million in the Period (Year 2014:
approximately HK$134.7 million).

As at 30 September 2015, the net asset value (“NAV”) of the
Group was approximately HK$1,333.9 million (30 June 2014:
HK$686.2 million), which represented a significant increase of
approximately 94.4% over the Fiscal Year 2014/15. The NAV per
share of the Group was HK$0.8523 (30 June 2014: HK$0.7175) as
at 30 September 2015, which increased by approximately 18.8%
during the Period. In addition to the total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$303.5 million, the Company has completed an
open offer during the Period, which led to the significant increase in
the Group’s net assets.

During the Period, the Company has adopted (i) share
consolidation (“Share Consolidation) on the basis of every five
(5) issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.001
each consolidated into one (1) consolidated share (“Consolidated
Share(s)) of HK$0.005 each, and (ii) an open offer (“Open
Offer”) on the basis of seven (7) Offer Shares for every one (1)
Consolidated Share held on 23 June 2015. The subscription price
of each Offer Share is HK$0.25. Owing to the subscription price of
Offer Share, which is lower than the NAV per share of HK$0.7175
as at 30 June 2014, and the effect of Share Consolidation, there
was only approximately 18.8% increase in NAV per share over
Fiscal Year 2014/15, while the NAV of the Group increased by
approximately 94.4% over the same period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR W R D

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 September 2015, the Group held assets of
approximately HK$1,633.6 million (30 June 2014: HK$751.9
million), including bank balances of HK$191.5 million (30 June
2014: HK$147.4 million). As the result from the capital raising
exercises as mentioned above, the Group maintained more cash
and bank balances as general working capital and for future
investment purposes. The Group’s current ratio (as defined
by current assets/current liabilities) decreased to 5.6 as at 30
September 2015 from 8.3 as at 30 June 2014, which was still
maintained at a healthy level. The Board believes that the Group
has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital requirement.

Capital Structure

Following the Share Consolidation and Open Offer as
mentioned above, approximately 1,369.4 million Consolidated
Shares were issued during the Period. Together with approximately
21.7 million shares (equivalent to approximately 4.4 million
Consolidated Shares) issued upon exercise of warrants, the
Company’s issued share capital increased from approximately
956.4 million shares of HK$0.001 each (equivalent to 191.3 million
Consolidated Shares) as at 30 June 2014 to approximately 1,565.1
million Consolidated Shares as at 30 September 2015.

Dividend Policy

It is the Board’s intention to distribute any excess balance by
way of dividend to the extent permitted by law, the Memorandum
and the Articles. Dividends will only be paid to the extent that they
are covered by net income received from underlying investments.
Distribution will be made annually after the annual accounts of the
Company are approved by the shareholders but interim distribution
may be made from time to time to shareholders as appear to the
Board to be justified by the position of the Company. Distributions
will be made in Hong Kong dollars.

As the Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio, the declaration of future dividends will be subject
to the decision by the Board and will depend on, among other
things, the earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants
of the Group’s bank loans (if applicable) and any other factors that

our Directors may consider relevant.
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As at 30 September 2015, the Group had no material
commitment.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 September 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group has a number of investment projects in the PRC
and may be subject to a certain degree of investment return risk.
In spite of this, the Board believes that foreign exchange risks are
minimal as the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars to carry out
its business transactions.

Human Resources

As at 30 September 2015, the Group had 5 employees
excluding the Directors. Total staff costs excluding Directors’
remuneration amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million.
They perform clerical, research, business development and
administrative functions for the Group. The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and the staff
remuneration is determined on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employees.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

During the Period, the Company does not have any significant
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 September 2015, the Group had pledged financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$738.6 million to secure the
margin payables.
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The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CGP Code”)
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) in its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of
corporate governance practices, namely, mandatory CGP Code
provisions that a listed company must comply with or explain its
non-compliance, and recommended best practices that listed
companies are encouraged to comply with but need not disclose
in the case of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance
with the mandatory CGP Code provisions, save for the deviations
discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors during the fifteen months
ended 30 September 2015 (the “Period” or “Fiscal Year 2014/15”).
The Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas
of the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities
are discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Period is
set out in the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum
number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a
Board Member or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Investment
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EZ¢ ENZBEE  FMzZEe RAZEE®  REZEE
Name of Director ESftg EE EE EE EE EE YN
Executive Directors HiTEs
Mr. Kong Fanpeng LABEE 6/(10) NATEE  NATEE  NAZTES 18/(18) 0/2)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee [=EVik 9/(10) NIA MER NIA MR NIA MR 18/(18) 2/(2)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lam Kwan wOERE 10/(10) 31(3) 1(1) 1(1) NIA MR 0/(2)
Mr. Ong Chi King TrmiE 911 2/(3) 11(1) 11(1) NIA MER 112)
Mr. Lee Ming Gin FHEEE 10/(10) 31(3) 111) 11(1) NIA T 112)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in
writing their independence from the Company in accordance with
the guidelines on director independence of the Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 7 to 9 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and
expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the
interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will review
its composition regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate
balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively
oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Period are
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the shareholders in
a general meeting or by the Board on recommendation of the
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into account criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when

considering a new appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company. New
Directors appointed by the Board during the Period, if any, are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
annual general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not exceeding one-third are required to retire from
office.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CGP Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same person. Decisions of the Company
are made collectively by the Executive Directors. The Board
believes that this arrangement enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s
objectives efficiently and effectively in response to the changing
environment. The Board also believes that the Company already
has a strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure
effective oversight of management.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CGP Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have no specific term of appointment but they
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to serve the purpose of this CGP Code provision.

ATTENDANCE IN GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to Provision A.6.7 of the CGP Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. Certain Independent Non-executive
Directors could not attend all general meetings held in the Period
due to other business commitments.
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| ORS’ TRAINING

AJs part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum
or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards

Continuous Professional Development training.

Pursuant to CGP Code A.6.5, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Period, all
Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses or by
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ka Yin has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since 30 January 2014. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He reports to the
Executive Directors and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Period, Mr. Chan undertook over 15
hours of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board
comprises all three Independent Non-executive Directors and is
chaired by Mr. Lam Kwan, who possesses extensive financial and
accounting experience in commercial sectors. It is responsible for
appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s financial
information and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. This
annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters
and to this end has unrestricted access to personnel, records and
external auditors and senior management.
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SREABRE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CGP
Code Provisions. In the Fiscal Year 2014/15, the Audit Committee
held three meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the final results
for the year ended 30 June 2014, and the interim accounts for
the six months ended 31 December 2014, and the twelve months
ended 30 June 2015 and the internal control structure. It also
reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the corporate
governance requirements as set out in the CGP Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Ong Chi King. The
Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CGP
Code Provisions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Ong Chi King. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board; identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorships; making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive; and determining the policy for nomination of directors.
The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CGP
Code Provisions.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee, comprises all Executive Directors,
is responsible for formulating investment policies and reviewing
and determining the investment portfolio of the Group.
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e
DIRI ORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
system of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to oversee
the Group’s operational systems for the achievement of the
Group’s business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company appointed Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditors
of the Company on 8 September 2009. In the Fiscal Year 2014/15,
total remuneration paid to the auditors was HK$525,000 (Year
ended 30 June 2014: HK$500,000), which represented statutory
audit fee. An amount of HK$90.000 was paid to Cheng & Cheng
Limited for non-audit services during the Fiscal Year 2014/15, and
no non-audit service was performed by Cheng & Cheng Limited for
the year ended 30 June 2014.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial

reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 28 and page 29.

E#AIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

EERUBRERAABEZER

EXAREESEAVBRARSARANRE  AHE
REZBR B RE S E E A0 A b R 57 2R [ 78 5 [ B BUIR
M FEBEERBERE - ARAIGHARENGREFAMN
BEBZERRABEZ G ER - EEFEEHERE
BIEEMERABE L ST BRARIEHEEMSEE
Z A R kA o

PR BE 42
ESEXRARARASERE2MARZ ABPEE
A BRATERRBREMEBEZER REEE
AP AREREZERHEEE EEE 2 BT R28E
REX AT R A] e 2 A B R L B0 8 R sl 5h 3%
o RN EBBDEPIERE - DREZERGEEES
BHREIYEENRERALBR YEERAEELZ
LEABNEREEZEBKER -

B A&

RARRZEENFNANBZABB S =S
FERARIABARRZZEM R —W,/ —AFH
WEE - B T ERED 2 B & 4858 /525,000 7T (B
EZF—MFAA=1+HIFE :500,000%T) « &
EAEBEREBER -R-_Z—MN/ —AFYREE O
SEEAZ RS M EP B0 5T A F AT A R A A1 15190,000
B MBEZZT—NFAA=THLEFE  BBS;
=S AR A A ETTIEE LR -

TZHMABY R R ETHNF28E K FE298
(B HEDRE | —#5 -

Annual Report 2014/15 &3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DA TIRTR
1E é/ﬁiﬁ%

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the Period and they all
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
A. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting
Extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
of Directors or the Secretary of the Company (Room 2302, 23/F,
New World Tower I, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such

requisition.
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meetlng shal

St e held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.

B. Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Director
A notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company and a notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected together with his/her
particulars (such as qualifications and experience) and information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited shall be lodged at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business (Room 2302, 23/F, New World Tower
I, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or at its share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited (Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong). The period for lodgment of
the notices required will commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting, and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7

days.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of
the Group For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 (the
“Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investing in listed and
unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

During the Period, the Company changed its financial year
end date from 30 June to 30 September in order to align the
Company’s financial year end date with that of its principal
associate, CNI Bullion Limited which is the Group’s substantial
investments. Accordingly, the annual financial period covered a
fifteen-month period from 1 July 2014 to 30 September 2015 and
the comparatives covered the year ended 30 June 2014.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Period and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 33 and page 102.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Period.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the Period are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company As at 30 September
2015, calculated in accordance with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$967,303,326 (30 June 2014:
HK$636,668,691).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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\ AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group

during the Period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to conform with
the Period’s presentation, is set out on page 108.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Period.

SHARE OPTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the annual
general meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the “Option Scheme”),
unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject to resolution
passed at general meeting of the Company the Option Scheme
will remain in force for ten years from 10 December 2013. As at
30 September 2015, the remaining life of the Option Scheme was
approximately 8 years and 9 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Option Scheme
include any employee (full-time or part-time), director, consultant
or advisor of any member of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of any member of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service
provider of any member of the Group, or any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of the above
classes.
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EEEHRE

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be,
the independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Participant under the Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of the Company
subject to options granted during such period under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive or
substantive shareholders (as such terms as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the
prior approval of the independent non-executive directors or
shareholders of the Company as the case may be. Without prior
separate approval from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant shall
not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of such grant; and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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r. the Option Scheme, the options granted may be
éccefwted by the participants concerned for a period of twenty-one
days from the date of such offer. An option shall be regarded
as having been accepted when the Company receives from the
Participant the duplicate of the offer letter duly signed by the
Participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 as consideration for the grant of option. Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at
any time not exceeding a period of ten years from the date on
which the share option is granted. The subscription price for the
shares on the exercise of an option under the Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

No share options were granted, lapsed, exercised or expired
under the Option Scheme since 10 December 2013. There were
19,561,841 shares, representing approximately 1.25% of total
issued share capital of the Company, available for issue under the
Option Scheme as at the date of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Period and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kong Fanpeng
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwan

Mr. Ong Chi King

Mr. Lee Ming Gin

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Kong Fanpeng
and Mr. Lee Ming Gin shall retire in accordance with Article 88(1).
All of them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
thereat. Re-election of Mr. Lam Kwan as an independent non-
executive Director shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in
accordance with the CGP Code Provision A.4.3 since his term of
service has been over nine years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 September 2015, none of the Directors have entered
into any service agreement with any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any time
during the Period.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 30 September 2015, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
Discloseable Interests or Short Position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
“Discloseable Interests or Short Positions”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 September 2015, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director, the chief executive or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the Period.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

(@) On 17 October 2014, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement to appointment Insight
Capital Management (HK) Limited (“Insight HK”) as its
new investment manager for an initial term of two years
commencing from 21 October 2014 up to 20 October
2016. The Company pays to Insight HK an investment
management fee payable monthly at HK$50,000 with effect
from 21 October 2014.

(b) On 13 March 2015, the Company entered into an
underwriting agreement with SBI China Capital Financial
Services Limited (as the underwriter), in relation to an open
offer of not less than 1,369,384,905 offer shares and not
more than 1,439,701,396 offer shares of HK$0.005 each at
a subscription price of HK$0.25 per offer share.

Save as disclosed, no other material contract (not being
contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) was
entered into by any member of the Group during the Period.

EEEH
AEEATEREAARMEREBAAETER
HH2EBERTBAI LRI BEAEL -

BEREN

(@) RZF—MFE+A+tH  AREFIZ—HIEE
B2 - LA Z BlInsight Capital Management
(HK) Limited ([ Insight HK |) A% 1% & & 12
A BEVSASHA S HF A=+ A
EFE-RETAZTRLEREME - AR
B - —WNF+ A= +— B RAInsight HKX
R EEEE RS 50,0008 T °

by R—ZE—AF=ZF+=8  AQAUESGERES
BMAREBERAR (EABHEME) AL BHEGZE
NABBERRABESREERM25E T - A
B % & 7~ 4 741,369,384,9050% 5 % [ {£0.005
BT 2 B E KRG KT %141,439,701,396 /% &A%
M {80.0057%8 70 2 B E KD ©

Br B EESN - REBEMKE RN AN AREIL
BAIVHEMBERAKN (LIFNABREBBIEFFILZE
#) °

26 E#AIRBRAT | CAPITALVCLMITED  Annual Report 2014/15 3§



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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LITIGATION
The details of a pending litigation are set out in note 31 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the Period.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the Period and were not aware
any transaction requiring disclosure of connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Period have been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited. Cheng
& Cheng Limited retires and, being eligible, offers itself for
reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of Cheng & Cheng
Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 December 2015
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CHEM!&CHM«HJMHED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

wom om out MoF B R AR A A

10/F, Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EABFELITE138RHMAEE AE1018

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 30 to 107
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 September 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the fifteen months ended 30 September
2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B HEHRE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 September
2015 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the period
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi

Practising Certificate Number: P05540

Hong Kong, 16 December 2015
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OF PROFIT OR LOSS

,-‘.y ember 2015 BE=F—AFAA=FTAILE+AEA

Year ended
30 June
2014
BH=E
—ZE—OF
NA=t+H
HFE
Notes HK$
e BT
Turnover L 7 136,230,385
Other income H A 9 265,600
Administrative expenses THEA (9,976,699)
Impairment loss on AHEERE ZREEE
available-for-sale investments -
Operating profit EEARN 126,519,286
Finance costs A& KR 10 (9,230,692)
Share of results of an associate JEIL B N B EE 17 (56,928,183)
Profit before tax B 7 BT & 11 60,360,411
Income tax st 12 12,204,732
Profit for the period/year KNEARE S ARFE BT 72,565,143
Dividend % 8 13 —
(Restated)
(E5)
Earnings per share B A& T 14
— basic — B 0.4410
— diluted — 8 0.4288
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEHMEERER

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

Fifteen months

ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BZE =
—E-EfF —E-mE
hA=+H NAZTHE
It+HM@A IFFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the period/year attributable to RRFIRERFBA
equity holders of the Company FEAG AR BAR AN 2 B R 297,480,979 72,565,143
Other comprehensive income (loss) Hih 2 miia (EE)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be REBRBEFTIBEERZ
reclassified to profit or loss subsequently: HEm2mas (E18)
Gain on fair value changes of AHEEREANEZ
available-for-sale investments Z Wz 6,008,000 -
Transfer from investment revaluation HEHEERER
reserve upon disposal of HEaREEHHEE
available-for-sale investment - (3,238,500)
Other comprehensive income (loss) Biiie s ABHEREE
for the period/year, net of tax Hih 2wk (B8) 6,008,000 (3,238,500)
Total comprehensive income RARBEREE A
for the period/year attributable to EIEASE RNFEE2E
equity holders of the Company W858 303,488,979 69,326,643
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OF FINANCIAL POSITION

30 June
2014
—ZE—OF
NA=1+H
MNotes HK$
oka BT
Non-current assets IERBEE
Plant and equipment R &% 16 209,168
Interest in an associate /NI 17 71,495,366
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 18 86,940,000
Amounts receivable on disposal of HETHBEEREZ
available-for-sale investments JE U ZIE 20 37,500,000
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 12 12,204,732
208,349,266
Current assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABEREZ
through profit or loss WBEE 19 209,992,210
Prepayments, deposits and AR RIE - R RHEA
other receivables FE W FRIE 20 106,732,628
Amount due from an associate JE Lk Bk = R B 5K IR 17 79,453,359
Bank balances RITE& 21 147,384,719
543,562,916
Current liabilities mEBAE
Other payables and accruals Hib 3B R ETE A 22 65,700,698
Net current assets mEBEEFE 477,862,218
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 686,211,484
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIEEE 12 -
686,211,484
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BBAARR R

At 30 September 2015 R=ZZ—aFNA=1+H

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-afF —T-mF
hA=+H NAZTHE
Notes HK$ HK$
Mt &t BT BT
Capital and reserves BEAR R i#EHE
Share capital A& s 23 7,825,408 956,396
Reserves Bk 1,326,084,863 685,255,088
Total equity attributable to equity holders KAGRERAA
of the Company JE(G HE R 4B FE 1,333,910,271 686,211,484
Net asset value per share BREEFE 27 0.8523 0.7175
The consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 107 were HNFIERI0TE L EMBREER T —HF
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 F+TZ AT ANHEEZESSHERIEERET THUTK
December 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: r®EE:
Chan Cheong Yee Kong Fanpang
BRE & A AHE
Director Director
EF EE
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREREARLER
(Accumulated
Capital  Convertible Investment osses)
Share Share reduction bonds revaluation retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
el ik k& (BHER)
A RiTEE e EAEE EhEE RERH st
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT e B B B BT
At1July 2013 R-E-ZF+A-H 100,929 348,141,145 22,826,010 3,660,000 3238500  (5790,085) 372,176,529
Profit for the year FEERH - - - - - T2565143 72,565,143
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal FRLENEARLE
of an available-for-sale investment IREEREARE
through disposal of a subsidiary EY - - - - (3,238,500) - (3,238,500)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2ENELE - - - - (3238500) 72565143 69,326,643
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue HERARETERR
(Note 23(a) (Ws2302) 50464 32,750,358 - - . Y )
Share issue expenses (Note 23(a)) R’OEIER (Hi#29a) - (1,684,055) - - - - (1,684,055)
Issue of ordinary shares by HAREERAEN
open offer (Note 23(b)) AR H29b) 685572 170,707,452 - - - o T1393,02
Share issue expenses (Note 23(b)) BORTERW230)) - (4,284,82) - - - - (4284826)
Exercise of warrants (Note 23(d)) RaRES (hi230) 99431 24,758,224 - - - - 24857655
Conversion of convertible bonds REARRES
(Notes 23(c) (is231e) 0000 2526469 - (3,660,000) . o260
At 30 June 2014 RZE-BERR=TA 956,396 595,653,990 22,826,010 - - 66,775,088 686,211,484
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERATER

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z=—Z—RFNA=+HI+HEA

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AAAREREARLRR
Capital Investment
Share Share reduction revaluation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
RAHE RE
B& REE it EftiG REEA @
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 July 2014 RZE-MEtA-H 956,396 595,653,990 22,826,010 - 66,775,088 686,211,484
Profit for the period RHEEF - - - - 297480979 297,480,979
Galn on fair value changes AHHERADAES
of available-for-sale investments palE: - - - 6,008,000 - 6,008,000
Total comprehensive income THF2ANREE
for the period - - - 6,008,000 297,480,979 303,488,979
Issue of ordinary shares by WAREENAEN
open offer (Note 23(g)) LRk (WH23g) 6,846,925 335,499,302 - - - 342,346,227
Share issue expenses (Note 23(g)) ROBTBR W H239) - (3,599,253) - - - (3,599,253)
Exercise of warrants (Note 23(e)) ERREE (HH230) 22,087 5,440,747 - - - 5,462,834
At 30 September 2015 RZE-EEAA=TH 7825408 932,994,786 22,826,010 6,008,000 364,256,067  1,333,910,271
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Interest income

Interest expenses

Interest on convertible bonds

Imputed interest expenses on convertible
bonds

Share of results of an associate

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net

OF CASH FLOWS

Se ptem er_2015 HE-_Z—AFNA=+BIL+HEA

REXK
B 7% A1 &2 7
RIEH AT SHEE
BE R EHITE
B WA
B
ABERERZ B
ABEER 2 EENERX

i3 2) AN E
AHEEREZREEE

HEWB LR 2 EIE  F58E

Operating cash flows before movements HEEREBAINLE
in working capital RBens
Increase in financial assets BAnBEFABRREZ
at fair value through profit or loss B 75 & B 3 N
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, FERRIE - e REME
deposits and other receivables SRIER A (35 n)
Increase in other payables Ho i FE A RRIB R FE AT
and accruals Rl
Cash (used in) generated from operations KEEBORE) RARS

Interest on bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Interest on obligations under finance leases

ARAFAZEENZRITR
HAts & 5RA S
BMEBOAEZFE

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES CARRIED
FORWARD

REEXBHRE (RE)RA
FERAE

E#AIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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Year ended
30 June
2014

HZE
—ET—F
ANA=1H
IFFE
HK$

BT

60,360,411
517,037

(9,167,880)
5,349,134

1,400,941

2,480,617
56,928,183

7,673,587

125,542,030

(132,766,630)

(30,465,069)

48,763,579

11,073,910

(5,346,184)
(2,950)

5,724,776



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SEREMNER

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z=—Z—RFNA=+HI+HEA

Fifteen months

ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BE BHZE
—E-—fE — 4
hWA=+H ~NA=1H
It+HMEA ILFE
Notes HK$ HK$
H&F BT BT
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM ARAREXEBRE (RYE)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RANFE
BROUGHT FORWARD (200,244,752) 5,724,776
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH

Increase in amount due JE U B 2 N B) ZRIE I 0

from an associate
BERENMZE
BEHEERE

Purchases of plant and equipment
Purchases of available-for-sale investments

(9,023,094)
(36,113,539)
(54,700,000)

(12,306,474)

(86,940,000)

Proceeds from repayment of loans receivable (B B &3 2 AT 15 5UE - 10,757,852

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB QAR ZERIE 26 - 8,000,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHHRESHRHFEHE (99,836,633) (80,488,622)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂﬁ?ﬁ@j

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITEBRFTISKIA 342,346,227 204,194,846

Expenses on issue of ordinary shares BITEBRAX (3,599,253) (5,968,881)

Proceeds from exercise of warrants TR REE 2 FT1S A 5,462,834 24,857,655

Repayments of obligations under finance EEMEROREMTR

leases - (73,090)

Repayment of other unsecured loan H i mIK I E R 2 E X - (14,000,000)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METBH2RHESRAFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 344,209,808 209,010,530
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBREESEYWILM

CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE 44,128,423 134,246,684
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT B ENEEREASEEY

BEGINNING OF PERIOD/YEAR 147,384,719 13,138,035
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT WK FRESRRESSEY

END OF PERIOD/YEAR,

represented by, bank balances LASRITHE R 25 21 191,513,142 147,384,719
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The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as

an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room 2302, 23rd Floor, New
World Tower I, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company announced on 24 June 2015 that the
financial year end date of the Company changed from
30 June to 30 September commencing from the financial
year 2014/15. Accordingly, the financial statements
for the current period cover a period of fifteen months
from 1 July 2014 to 30 September 2015 (the “Period”).
The corresponding comparative amounts shown for the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and related notes
cover the year ended 30 June 2014 (the “Year 2014”) and
therefore may not be comparable with the amounts shown for
the Period.

The Company changed its financial year end date in order to
align the Company’s financial year end date with that of its
principal associate, CNI Bullion Limited which is the Group’s
substantial investments.

—RER
ARAERFAEREIMKLAEREBRAA
HROAREABMAERSIMERLR (HRA]) £
™ o A Q A5k ACricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands - EFX ELEMH AT EERFT K
B85t R K2 —Hi23182302F

REMBBERAETEY  EXRFAREMNER
A (BB AEE]) 2heEEBER -

AEBZIBEBRREIZNBERTEAR
HMBE([FRE])Z EMEIFLTRAE -

ARBIRA - E—RESNA-THNBEEH  KARFZ
WBREEHEEEEH_S—N,/ —"AFHREE
BANA=ZTHERANE=1A - Bt - AHMHE
ZHBEBRERRER T —NFLA—HEEZT
—HFENAA=FTAHIE+REA A (AEBAED -
REBREE HRAHME2AERSER HeERE
BRMEENFAM R AL BRSEREHEC
Z-MENA=+tHLEFE(=ZE—MF]) - A
It A BE R BE B AN BARS TR 2 S EEVELL B ©

ARARENEMREEGEERDAEARB ZH
BERAERAEASEIZEHLARATEILT
SREFRAR (AEEZEARE) —H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

2,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

In the Period, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by HKICPA:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Investment entities

Defined benefit plans:
employee contributions

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial
assets

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

Levies

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the

current period has had no material effect on the amounts

reported and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

RAFAIREBIETBUBREER
(TERMBREER])

RAHE  ASERBTIHHELSITMAGR
2 F R R B AM G RE LR

EBABRELA  HoF-FFE-F-—F
24T B 1 1 3
2R

BEMBHREER H-FT—FE_FT-—=F

ZAER] BEME AP BREEN
FEHGE
HERMBREEL REBR

1058 - BAEMB
s ERIFE1298
REBGFTAER
F27H 2187

BAEGFTEA
F199E 2185

BB GFTER
EI25k 2185

EBGRTER FeMEETIE S
F365% 2 1E7] W&

RERMEE : BEHK

MBEERMBABZER

BB iR

=]

B 2l TE TR ZEH R
EE395% 2 1

EH) SRR ZIEE

&8 (BRM% B=E
BERELZES)
—REBE215%

RAMEER LR BBV B REENZEBTHZ

ERAVBBRRMERSBR,AABWEEFER
WEEBAZE -
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Fr Y
e
OPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and Interpretations issued

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, interpretations and amendments that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

RAFAIREBIERBUBREER
((EEMBREEN] @

EHEMER RERZHT KRBT ERBYE
BEEARRE
AEEWERBAEAATERMBERRERZH
RIRBIERI BB REEL 2ERERT -

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to EBUHBREL —E-—FE-_T—NF
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle’ ZE5] Bz BBUBERE

HE QN F 2 A

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative’ EH S EAE1TE WEEEN

ZAEET
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable EXBSTEAE165E BEHEREN Y
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation’ EEESFH AR o B = A
385% Z {£7]
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: bearer plants' EHSTEE16SE 2 £EKEY
and HKAS 41 PV R |
B4R 27T
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate EH S HEAE27R BIYMBRE 2SR
financial statements’ pAH)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets BB TR R A B B EEERE N T

and HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture’

Investment entities:

F10RREBELBGFT AELEZHANEE
RERNFE28F 2 7] HEFTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10, FREVBEHREEN KREER: BRAKAAR

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 applying the consolidation $£10% - FHEH K 51| IS St
exemption’ HEERE125%
REBG AR
F285 2 15T
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisition of E &I IR IR E AR WAL RN
interests in joint operations’ EXRE A 2R
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments? BB TR IRE %R S EhT A2
el
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts’ EHE I RS AT EEEREEE B
F145%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with EBMBRELD] BPEADNIKA2
customers? #1595

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 1

RIE-—RF-A-BR2ERRZFEBEN
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 R-BE—NFE—A— B ZEBEE 7 EEREAER

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application RABEEBE  FERZEFIIRREBEEH
of these new and revised HKFRSs, interpretations and BRELEL - RELREITBIeHARER 2 EE4

[ == R AN
amendments will have no material financial impact on the IS EEE E R IGE o
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared AV HRETIREFS R AL ERS  HETF
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial SRTADREARBELSE WY@K EFTR
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained P

in the accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEBE®@®
(Continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in BEVBRERDEBELSSHMAGHEME 2EE
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, B EERRE o LN RE W Bk B A
the consolidated financial statements include applicable RATES ETRAREEREHEOIRE 2B A
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of BAA -

Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation FERBEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial FEMBRREBEARRTARERT REKER

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the BN 2 B2 W MK - WS ATEE - 8

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the AN B R A P R

Company:

«  has power over the investee; . AHRBEHRITHEET

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its - HAZHREURZEBMIESNERES
involvement with the investee; and AEER &

+  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. o HIEEBENFEHEER-

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee WEEERBERBER L =BEHEEZR B —

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to BHA FRBREL - AIAEEeSEHAREER

one or more of the three elements of control listed above. THIIREHR

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed HA R AT U sk & 2 M B A Rl 2 WA K B

of during the period/year are included in the consolidated ToRBEREBEMHBREREEHEEME L

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (RFBERBAME) st AZEER REM2EK

from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective K e

date of disposal, as appropriate.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income BEakSHEEBEEBRARTBERARFES AR
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the FEIEAR SR - M A Al 2 2 TE W A4 %EE%%E/\\K
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of NEEA N IE TR - B b R BRI
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and R HIR B AL A AR o

to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MEBARZMBEHRENBHEERMELFAE - UF
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in HertBoREASEEMK S AR ERE—B -
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses FIEEBARS  #& WARIZIEHHREE A
are eliminated in full on consolidation. BRIG 2B 8H o
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i 30 September 2015 B#HE-_Z—

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale.

AFNA=+BLETREAR

)EIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESBER (#)

FEERREMBARANEREESS

AEERMBAREAEEZFBY EERAKHE
HHBARKEEHEBEAEAIHIAR A
SE R MOFE fob*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu&@%
RMBARARERES - FFERESANER
SHEESMRDWRED ‘ﬁTEFaﬂTﬂﬂ%%EE&
RERERLFEBRARAEEA °

HWARBREY —HMBRRZZEHE  BHE
BEATIIMIEZ Z8E () AEBRREZR
REREAREEZAARBZEM  RHHEL
AZEE(BRBE) RABREMFERER
FEREEE MHBARZETEEREMRSH
FRAEFE MBEBERFRBERNEM2EK
ABRL Nz RET - IR AR E b 2 R ARE
BERNERRFTZERBSARMARFNDERE
HERBEEZ T AAR (NEH S REBENE
EEBEERERN) - RAEZEHEEBNRER
A B AR 2 ERMREQRAE  MREEE S
ERFEIR ST A : ERRFE]  BEERA
EMEBRERNLERZAAE  H(WERA)
REHE R RS HFIEH B RIRE 2 SR -

RARBZFBRRIRED KRB AR ZRE
BRAMBRREBRER  ERESBRFFE
EXRERRDERFEHEZLERE AR -

E#AIRBRAT | CAPITALVCLMITED  Annual Report 2014/15 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post—
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long—
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

FESBER #)

RBERAZRE
fENE R EEHEAERTE  MIEH
BRABNMIEGELKIERE -

e

BERRZXE BERABHASERE
MAZSEAMBRE - REBERE KRB
RAZ BB THRRAR IR E M BARRARF S
R UBAKREDEZEHERR CEEFE
ZWEE R E BN - UM EEAEEA
ZHEBE EAEEOEXBERRZEE
BERIBLERZBE AR Z#E (BHEE
MRk MaxEBESEE TERARE
NZBERRZREFEZ—8HD)  AIXE
ETBEERAEDE2E—FEBR - BIND
HZBERDEEE MAaBERAKECES
EE M B ERRRZHE R REL A RE
RRMEER -

N

AEBMBEAHREE  BERIKRABEZR
AFESHRBRA 2B EEHFHERITIA
RN BEEER -

MEAREE Yz —EWEERRET—ARS - Al
BEUAAEERE@BRE QR D 2 EERRM
B o
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5d 30 September 2015 HE=Z —

-NIFICAN CCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and/or annual
rates of depreciation adopted, if any, are as follows:

— Leasehold improvements 25% — 50%

— Furniture and fixtures 25%
— Office equipment 25%
— Computers 25%
— Motor vehicles 25%
— Vessel 25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year in which the item is dereognised.

AFAA=+RILETREAR

JIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESBER (#)

BERRE
BEREZEERABREZEBITERRRERE
BB ER o

BEREKERE ZTERE G IERFRL
AR EET RSB ENBESEMEEKARE - f5H7H
ERAFHR FERNZTEFE(MB)MT :

- HEMEEE 25% — 50%
UV 25%

- MAEXRME 25%
- B 25%
-A 25%
-mE 25%

RBERREREHERINERAITSRAFER
REEMELERKEHAMAR - ZBEMFE LRE
HUBERER - ABUHREEMEL ZERAE (1R
ZHEEBEZHEMGRFRERTME ZRA
B)RRAEERDBEMRZFEFAKEGER
% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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1 30 September 2015 #E—F—

.NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivates are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At the end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including other
receivables, amounts due from an associate and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL or loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss (see accounting policy
on impairment loss of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy
on impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

FESBER #)

SR T A ()

B3R ER R

B EAGR IR R BT IS RER A EE
ERABERBAZFNTETEMNBEE - RUP
ERREREHR  ERREEFA (BREMBE
WOskIR - FEUREE & N R IR IA RIRTT 4T ) 1918
AR ER A B R M ORI 2 B EREA
R(ATXERAHHEEZREBRZEFTEER)

R E R E
AHHEMBEERIITERE  ERETET
RN REANBEFABEREZUBEEXE
BN U R IA -

RERERESHRERNR  IHEEVBEER
RAREFE - AREZEBH N E M2 m RS
RINREELFHEHEAZESETEIRN  EE
ZH B EER G EREERAE  EERENE
mNER R RPEERAER D EEER (R
TXERUBEEZREBBZEFHER) °

RERM ST ERERE DA EREN SFHFE
ZAHEERARE  RERERESREHRK
BRAEREFC BB EBRE (R TXAH
MBEEZREBBRZEFER) -

HBEEEZ R EEIE
BREAREFABGREZVBEEN  BKE
EREBREHURETRENE - HEFBZEE
AMBEER VI HABRELBA - AXZEATER
Mt ARKRRER2EET MU BEESHR R
BRI -

RAHHERAREMS  WEBREZANE
BRETRIFERNEXLS  ARRARELR
BERE-

Annual Report 2014/15 &3

47



48

L —
GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter
party; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of other receivables, amount due from an associate
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When the other receivables, amount due from an associate
are considered uncollectible, they are written-off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written- off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. For available-for-
sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFI
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for trading of listed securities and
represents amounts receivable for interest income, dividend
income from investments in listed securities and net gain
on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-
sale investments. It also includes the net gains (losses) on
financial assets at FVTPL.

Sale of available-for-sale securities and equity investments at
FVTPL are recognised on a trade date basis.

Dividend income from investments in listed securities
including financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Other income is recognised whenever it is received or
receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity (the exchange translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed. Contingent rentals rising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expenses on straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share based
compensation plan. The fair value of options granted in
exchange for employee services received is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to
equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and the share premium when the options are exercised.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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BUHEZRBRHMEEZEE MBNEDR
HERIERER) - EREBRB A FTRITEZBK
BEBER  JERFEMSLEE 2 BBIEE—0E
B-REBREHR ZERBRHBYEMA T AT
BzBREHBMAEZES  LESRABERE
RABRRMEAMEEZZE (WMA) » RRHT
BEAANYEEFHARHE -

B WFHE (MR EMERER XS RA) E1TER
P AR A (HE) RO EE -

BEAL
RIFERT  — TR REREEE S -

(@) fRBIATAL BIRZALTSZALTZIRE
REEBRE

(i) FEHISHERESAER
(i) BAKEEERTE X

(i) AAEERAKABARZEEEEE
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o DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i 30 September 2015 HE=_Z—RFNA=THIE+REA

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHE®@

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued) BAE AL (#)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) fH7FE AR - BB A R E A R E
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREASEBR-—SEIZKERA]:
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —AERBAS EBRNBEAAINEE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow RS -—EBHERAA -MWEARF
subsidiary of the other entity); HKETKB AT

(iii) one entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) —"EEREALEEHIRA-—EFE=A24
same third party; B

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) —HERBRE=FTEBHNEELE M
other entity is an associate of the third entity; HEERAZE- FEBNBE QR

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) BERAASESEASEFHEE B
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity IR B F s S M B B R A AT 8

related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (viy BEEX ()T bl A TSk /=
person identified in (a); and fl &

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R(@)()FT# B A THE S FEN
influence over the entity or is a member of the key FBZER (XZEBZER 7) TEF
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent HEKE -
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viii) BERES B PTE & E 2 (E K B R Rl A4
part, provides key management personnel services EESAAEEFARIERETEETREERK
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. B R -

Close family members of an individual are those family BERIA T ZEBRREKE NIEZBBKELER
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced AIRZGHARTEIETEIRENKE -

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities HitBERRREE

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain MAEREBSARNRBREDEE 2 SHRIELE
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal LHERME BT uiffiﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂAﬁﬁAﬁi%/ﬁ“
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, WMem 2 RSN - WRAIVEH Al S 2 (5T - E &t
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be ZRHNeEIEZ EMBENIRER - ORE
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be KEHEBEEEN AIREGBITEAMTHAIZ
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions WETREE -

are stated at the present value of the expenditure to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits iME BB NGz ERINEZ T2 EEIR - 5%
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, REFIHEHESBEELEIE 2 EEH&ZE
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless THREAXABE BEROIGESELER R
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. BRINTE Z ATRE B AR BIBR O - BIRFHEFH %
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed FAREHREBRAE ST FEEGZEBERES
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future T TEeERBELARABE BERUEESHELE
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the g 2 BIRINAR 2 0] BE 1 B 45 K Bl BR A ©

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which

are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are

required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are

not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and

associated assumptions are based on historical experience

and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

(i)

Useful lives and residual values of items of plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed, at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan and other receivables in respect of
advances to the debtors based on objective evidence
of impairment and historical loss experience of the
individual balance of the counterparty.
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ICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Valuation of available-for-sale investments

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using valuation techniques based on
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
information of the available-for-sale investments.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale investments
as at 30 September 2015 was HK$119,384,000 (30 June
2014: HK$86,940,000), further details of which are set out
in Note 18.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included margin payable as disclosed in Notes 22 and equity
attributable to equity holder of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, issue of debentures, new share issues
and share buy-back.

HRETHEREFTABAREZETE
HR ()

HATHBREZETEER (8

(i) ATHHEREZEE
TEEFEOIIE F TR AE H NGRS IERT
BRz2EZBERAT  KNEBRBMHERZE -
REBRETRAKRZEHEEALE B
AHHEREZFEITBER -

W-ZE—AFNA=1+H AHBEREZ
BRTE {8 5119,384,000/8 7T (— T —04F X A
=1 H : 86,940,000/ JT) * =F 15 &AM E
18 o

EXRERERE

AEEERHEEAURRAEEANZERKER
BEE RAREBBLERRESARABRE
EHRFERK - AKECBBRBREEIFHETD

AEBZEARBRREER (BRERKE22HEZ
FENFFRFIR) RARRIBAER A ARE#EZ (2
EEBEITRARERE)

ARTEESFENEREMS - EETEMES
EFOEEAANAREERAA 2 ABHER -
BEEEY 28 AREREBRGRE BT
R BT R E R U T B R EE A
18 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

EWMITA
(a) eMIAZSE

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-HEF T
hB=+8H NA=t+H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets B & E
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFTABREE
2B EE 982,276,147 209,992,210
Loan and receivables B3l skoE
— other receivables, net —E B UGRIE - FEE 135,143,656 144,232,628
— amount due from an associate — W A A SRR 95,842,223 79,453,359
Bank balances IRITHE SR 191,513,142 147,384,719
422,499,021 371,070,706
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 119,384,000 86,940,000
1,524,159,168 668,002,916
Financial liabilities BigaE
Other financial liabilities at KA E 2
amortised cost HiogasE
— other payables —E {th fE S FRIE 250,949,702 65,700,698
250,949,702 65,700,698
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sd 30 September 2015 HE==—

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL,
other receivables, amount due from an associate, bank
balances and other payables. Details of these finance
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

(i) Other price risk
The Group’s available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to equity security price risk. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting date.

AFNA=+BLETREAR

6. @I A @®
(b) IREAMEEEERKE

AEBZIZTRIABRKRIHLERE
RARBEFNABREEMBERE - HfbE
WORRIR B URESE & A R FRIR C IRTTAERR E
@EﬁmﬁoﬁguﬂlﬂZﬁhEm%é
ZHERE ZEeMTARB ERERE
ﬁ%@ﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁ HoAth (B 8 i Ko ) = [,
%) - EERBERBESRR -

T EF A BREERZSRR ZBE - BB
BB EERZ R - AR KA U
KEUEE B -

7% 2 e

(iy EERR
REBMBAERVEBERRIBG
NATEE - Al - BERERBAEE
Tz INERBITTERK -

(i) HEtERRR
AEBZAHEERERRAABERA
BaRE s WBEEEHUNARREAR
ZAREFE - ALt - REBEBEAER
REHFEEERR - EIRE TR ERRE
EzHREHESERILERR

AT EBREDMIDERERSE AR
EamERRRZFAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €W I A @

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¥ EREEBEZERBE#)
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) A ()
(i) Other price risk (Continued) (i) HiEREE ()
In respect of available-for-sale investments and SRIRA A EEF A BT > AT 1T
] L A R 7~ =

financial assets at FVTPL, the following table N N o L
, , y ARBHEEMS - TRERMWERSE

demonstrates the impact on profit before tax, other »
Ft/TFE5% (ZF— M4 : 5%)  HEk

comprehensive income and equity if the price had

Mo L B 24T 2w,
been 5% (Year 2014: 5%) higher/lower. RAIER - At 2ENGE N AR ZHE
Carrying Increase
amount of Increase in other
equity in profit comprehensive Increase
investments before tax income in equity
BARE BREiAl HEtt2m
ZEHE BREM I 35 3% BEREm
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B
At 30 September 2015 “EZ-HRFENA=1H
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 119,384,000 - 5,969,200 5,969,200
Investments listed in REBZ LTRE
Hong Kong
— financial assets at FVTPL —BDREFAER
REZHKEE 982,276,147 49,113,807 - 49,113,807
At 30 June 2014 —E-NERNA=TH
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 86,940,000 - 4,347,000 4,347,000
Investments listed in REBEZLTRE
Hong Kong
— financial assets at FVTPL —-BAREFABR
REHEEE 209,992,210 10,499,611 - 10,499,611
Credit risk a0

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the W BEHFR " E—RENLA=FHM R
event of the counterparties failure to perform their BIIRECEMT I AEEGSHEMBEE
obligations as at 30 September 2015 in relation to MAEARS EAXEZEREAENEST®

each class of financial assets is the carrying amount of WRER s EEYEAZRE - AFEEER
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of BMEESE  RBEEE AE@THT(G

financial position. In order to minimize the credit risk, the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual financial assets at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.
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1 30 September 2015 #E—F—AENA=+HIF+RES

| ANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

6. @I A @®
(b) ¥ EREEBEZERBE#)

HBE AR
AREZEEAFBHNANEES AIAE
SRARERTEE Y, TE - AEBARY
TR S AR I -

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
minimal.

Maturity analysis FEIH S
TRAVNAEHEZHBEABER T —HFN
A=Z+BER-ZZE-—MFRA=ZTRHZHHA
HFNEER - TRDRBEMBEE 2 KRR
HRenEMMY  ZERBABDRERE

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at
30 September 2015 and 30 June 2014. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

62

the Group is required to pay.

BANRZZRAHNE -

At 30 September 2015 WZE—RAFNLA=1H
On Total
demand/ One year contractual
within to Over undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount
RER/ BHRER
—£R —FEMF BARFE HEeREAH REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other payables Hi AR 250,949,702 - - - 250,949,702
250,949,702 - - - 250,949,702
At 30 June 2014 N-Z—pmEXxA=+H
On Total
demand/ One year contractual
within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount
REX/ BRRER
—FR —FEMF BamE HERELR RER
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other payables H At e (F 508 65,700,698 - - - 65,700,698
65,700,698 - - - 65,700,698
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value

6. €W I A @

(c) DRE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

— the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group approximate their fair
values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at end of the
reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorized in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

— Level 2 (mid level): fair values measured using
quoted process in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data; and

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.
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value (Continued)

6. @I A @®
(c) ARME @)

Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFARR
BEMBEE
- listed securities - EmES
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEECHBEE
— unlisted securities —FLEmBESH
30 June 2014
R-ZE-—WFEXA=1H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 EZfE EZE k]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL RARERAER
RECUHBEE
- listed securities - tWES 209,992,210 - - 209,992,210
Available-for-sale financial assets AREEZHEEE
- unlisted securities —kLEHEH - - 86,940,000 86,940,000
209,992,210 - 86,940,000 296,932,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value (Continued)

EMIA W@

(c) DRfE @)

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in

AEBETUHBEEDASRERBRZA
REFE - TREHEEXZSMBEELR
BZER (RBME - AERGBERTEEA
2z -

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Relationship of

30 September Fair value Valuation
Financial assets 2015 hierarchy technique(s)
HHEE —3-1F DREER fEE R
MA=TA
HK$
B
Financial assets
at FVTPL
BAREBH ARRRE
LHBERE
Listed securities 982,276,147 Level 1 Quoted bid price
LWES -1 in an active market
REMSHREEE
Available-for-sales
financial assets
ARLERKEE
Unlisted equity 119,384,000 Level 3 Discounted cash
securities =8 flow
FEHBRAES HARER

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale equity
instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
method adjusted for lack of marketability discount.
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated
to the discount for lack of marketability. At the end of
the reporting period, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a decrease/increase in discount
for lack of marketability by 5% would have increased/
decreased the group’s other comprehensive income by
HK$5,969,200 (Year 2014: HK$4,347,000).

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Significant unobservable
unobservable inputs
inputs Range to fair value
EXNTEE g TEIHEHA
BARE BEAM B BE
N/A N/A N/A

TR TR TER
Free cash N/A The higher

flow TER the free cash
BRARM flow, the higher

the fair value

ERRERMA -

DA EER

Weighted average 10% The higher
cost of capital to 19.05% the weighted
METFHERRE 10%%19.05% average cost
of capital, the

lower the

fair value

METHERKA

BA RREEN

Discount 13.12% The higher

for lack of to 30% the discount
marketability 13.12%Z£30% for lack of
HZEELESR marketability,
the lower the

fair value

BT AHLER

BA DRERN

FLrmAHERETR 2 AR EHERARL
RBASMIAEE U RZEHERRRE
HAE - AAEFEERZEHEREL/A
MR - RS BR - BRI IH 1 2 REIR R
DI NN5% PR A R
I 5+ A 5= B E b 2 T MR R R 0B
5,969,200/ 7T (= F — 1 4 : 4,347,000/
JT) °
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5d 30 September 2015 HE=Z —

AFNA=+BLETREAR

(c) Fair value (Continued) (c)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3

during the Period are as follows:

At beginning of the period/year i FE %

Purchase A

Disposal &

Transfer out of Level 3 to Level 1 BE=-REREE—

Unrealised gains recognised in BRA R H Ath 2 E Uz R
other comprehensive income 2 AREIR W

during the period
Impairment loss recognised in HARERTER REERE
profit or loss during the period

JIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRUMENTS (Continued) 6. 2@ T A @

R E (80

RAHE  F=RAAEFEZEHNT

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
hA=+H NA=TH
HK$ HK$

BT BT
86,940,000 34,266,300
67,150,000 86,940,000

- (34,266,300)
(12,450,000) -

6,008,000 -

(28,264,000) -

At end of the period/year H RS

119,384,000 86,940,000

During the period ended 30 September 2015, the transfer
out of Level 3 to Level 1 represent the exchange of
shares in a private company for shares in a company
listed on Stock Exchange. There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 of fair value measurement.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between

levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

7.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable on
investments and net profit on financial assets at FVTPL during

the Period/Year 2014 as follows:

ERA

EERBEAPH, —T-—NFARE 2B R RE
WRERZRAARBEFABGREZHBEEFR

M -

Fifteen months

ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BZE H=E
—E-AF —ET-F
hA=+H NA=1H
It+HMEA IEFE
HK$ HK$
BT o
Turnover B
Net profit on financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABRRECMBEEE
2B 397,724,164 134,698,295
Dividend income from investments KEEMEHFZREBA
in listed securities 307,877 32,138
Dividend income from investment in FEAHEERE ZRIWA
an available-for-sale investment 150,000 —
Interest income on amounts receivable HEHDERE 2 EIRIE
on disposal of available-for-sale ZF B A
investments 1,098,930 3,338,578
Interest income on amount due from JE W Bk i R RRIB 2 A B
an associate 7,369,515 5,829,302
Bank and other interest income RIT R E AR B YA 20,829 5,659
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENBAREE - F58 = (7,673,587)
406,671,315 136,230,385
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he Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker for decisions about
resources allocated to the Group’s business components and
for the review of the performance of those components.

The principal activity of the Group is investing in listed and
unlisted companies. The Group has identified the operating
and reportable segments as follows:

Financial assets — Investments in securities listed on
at FVTPL Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Available-for-sale - Investments in unlisted securities
investments
Associate — Investments in an entity which the

Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture

TEHEH

AEBERBEENE  URBETBLERKER
AEBEBEKBD 2 ERD RAERE Rigc %
FHRBO 2 RABNZEPRERRDOIER -

AEBZETBEBRRELMRIFLTAA K
EEzEERTRERDEHHIMT

BARERAERE
RIEZMBEE

AHHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =T —HFNA=+HIE T HEAR

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. oHEH®

Segment revenue P EE

Administrative expenses THER

Impairment loss on HEERE
available-for-sale investments ZHEER

Segment result PEEE

Finance costs BEKK

Share of results of an associate ElEBEAREE

Profit (loss) before tax R AR (BE)

Income tax e

Profit (loss) for the period TEREAN(BE)

Segment assets NEEE

Segment liabilities NHEE

Other segment information Hth o HER

Depreciation of plant and BFEREETE
equipment

Purchase of plant and equipment B ERE k& E
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8. ZEER @

For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE_Z-MEXA=TALEE

Investment in Investment
financial in available- Interest
assets for-sale inan
at FVTPL investments associate Unallocated Total
RERDR
FABREE RE N A=UNG|
LEBEE HERE ZEE KPR BB
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B BT
Segment revenue ok e 134,734,669 (4,335,009) 5,829,302 267,023 136,495,985
Administrative expenses THER - - - (9,976,699) (9,976,699)
Segment result NEEE 134,734,669 (4,335,009) 5,829,302 (9,709,676) 126,519,286
Finance costs BEKA (3,900,182) - - (5,330,510) (9,230,692)
Share of results of an associate [ERHEAREE - - (56,928,183) - (56,928,183)
Profit (loss) before tax BREARR (B8) 130,834,487 (4,335,009) (51,098,881) (15,040,186) 60,360,411
Income tax R 12,204,732 - - - 12,204,732
Profit (loss) for the year KEERMN(BR) 143,039,219 (4,335,009) (51,098,881) (15,040,186) 72,565,143
Segment assets NEEE 270,200,957 181,625,606 150,948,725 149,136,894 751,912,182
Segment liabilities PHAE 63,357,105 - - 2,343,593 65,700,698
Other segment information Hth o HER
Depreciation of plant and BFE REETE
equipment - - - 517,037 517,037

Given the nature of the Group’s operation is investment

AERAKBENEBRRERER  AtAKEL T
FEERNEIEEFHER -

holding, there was no information regarding major customers
as determined by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HftWA
Fifteen months
ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BZE HZE
—2-RF —Z—MF
hWA=+H ~NA=+H
IE+H@EA IFFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net sundry income MW A FEE 12,903 265,600
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. Bt & AR 2
Fifteen months
ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BZE H=E
—E-HF —E-MEF
hB=+H ~A=+H
IE+EH@EA IFFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest expenses on borrowings BARAFRNEHEEEEZ
wholly repayable within five years: FEFRE

— bank overdrafts —HRITEX = 114
— margin accounts —FREERP 3,805,318 3,900,182
— finance leases —REMLY — 2,950
— convertible bonds — AR ES - 1,400,941

— imputed interest expenses on —AIMRREFZHENERX
convertible bonds - 2,480,617
— other unsecured loan —H b mE A E R - 1,445,888
3,805,318 9,230,692
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12.

72

tax has been arrived at after

1. BRE AT BT

AEBZBRBAIANE MR

Directors’ emoluments EE=e

Staff costs BITKA
— Salaries, allowances and other benefits — % - 288 & E & F|
— MPF Scheme contributions — R IE& 5T K

Total staff costs @B TKA

Auditor’s remuneration 1% B A B &

Depreciation of plant and equipment WEREETE
— owned assets —-BEEE

Minimum lease payments under HEMERBEEHEL
operating lease for rented premises ZmIEMES

INCOME TAX 12. BBt

(@) The amount of taxation charged (credited) to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

Deferred tax expense (credit) BREMIBRAS (Bx)

(a)

EMkRA GtA) G
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Year ended
30 June
2014

Bz
—T-mF
~NAZ=1H
IFFE
HK$

BT

1,808,000

1,146,921
49,895

3,004,816

500,000

517,037

1,607,443

wmERZBIALRE

Year ended
30 June
2014

HZE
—E-F
NA=1H
L E

(12,204,732)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #

12. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made

E-T-AFAA=+HLETHEEAR

12. FTE™H (5)
(a) (&)

HRAHEZ ERVENCDEEBEFEZ

as the Period’s taxable profits has been set-off by B W EREESNERIELEE (=
previous years’ losses (Year 2014: Nil). — PO : ;) o
The income tax for the Period/Year 2014 can be AER/ —E—NFEZREHRAEEAET
reconciled to the profit before tax per the consolidated KZBRBRATNEEREAT
statement of profit or loss as follows:
Fifteen months
ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
Bz =
—E—FF —m4F
hA=+H ANA=TH
IE+HEA tEE
BT EIT
HK$ HK$
Profit before tax B % A 28 7 358,403,182 60,360,411
Tax at domestic income tax rate of ~ E A FT1S L £16.5%:T & 2 B 1A
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) ZZE—POF : 16.5%) 59,136,525 9,959,468
Tax effect of share of results of BB ERRFEECRGETE
an associate (365,822) 9,393,150
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBWAZBIEZE
for tax purpose (156,945) (9,091,320)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HF 2 HIE T E
for tax purpose 4,764,456 2,089,431
Tax effect of tax losses recognised BRI S E R 2 %R ‘i" - (6,953,286)
Tax effect of temporary differences AERYHEZE BB E
not recognised (2,906,470) 69,776
Tax effect of loss not allowed AATFNEBZBEZE 450,459 9,765
Tax effect of prior year's tax losses AR AKEEHHEFHE
utilized in this period/year EBEMGETE - (17,681,716)
Income tax expenses (credit) Frigfim sz (%) 60,922,203 (12,204,732)

At 30 September 2015, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$7,253,980 (Year 2014: HK$43,717,284) available
for offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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| -OME TAX (Continued)
(b) The component of deferred tax liabilities (assets) (b) REAUBRAERERZELEHBEE (&
E)BHRAEEZEBHEHEINET :

recognized in the consolidated statement of financial

30 September 2015 HE_-Z—

JIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AFNA=+BLETREAR

12. FRE% (8

position and the movements during the Period are as

follows:

Unrealized
gain (losses) on
financial
assets Unused
at FVTPL tax losses Total
BRAnE
ATABREEY
MBEEZ
REIR RENA
W (B8) MG EE #Et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 30 June 2014 RZZE—mMEXA=+H (4,991,380) (7,213,352) (12,204,732)
Charged to profit or loss S| ZIKHE fE B & R HBR
for the Period 54,905,758 6,016,445 60,922,203
At 30 September 2015 RZZE—RAFNLA=+H 49,914,378 (1,196,907) 48,717,471
13. B2

13. DIVIDEND

14.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the Period (Year 2014: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit for the Period attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$297,480,979 (Year 2014:
HK$72,565,143), based on the weighted average number of
632,004,371 (Year 2014 (restated): 164,537,688) ordinary
shares in issue during the Period.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the Year 2014 was adjusted to reflect the share
consolidation and open offer effected on 12 June 2015 and 21
July 2015 respectively.

There was no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share
for the Period as there was no dilutive shares outstanding
during the Period.

The profits used in the calculation of diluted earnings per

share for the Year 2014 was the same as those for the basic
earnings per share, as set out above.
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EEgUTRBRNASMEZBRE (ZT—m4:
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14. BRER
EREAREFTIREBEARAGESEAREASE
B > 7K 238 & F297,480,979% 7T (= B — U 4 ¢

72,565,143 70) @ I ABEAE 217 E @R 20
19 £632,004,3710% (—Z —PUF (KLEF) ¢
164,537,688%) 51 & -

—E-OEHEZEETERRNETFARELD
HAEUARRDPIN -ZE-—RAF A+ -BR-F
—AFEA- T RETZRDEHRARMEE -

H R 7 B 30 31T OB MR AL
Mz BRERRFNTEETLE -

" HIE TR 7R B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the

14. 3REF (#)

calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

AAEEREERNARA TR
SAEERERNBNAARA 2 EBBINEF S E8Y
BRI

Fifteen months

ik RSk ¢

ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
(Restated)
Bz HE
—E-AfF —T-EF
hA=+H ~NA=1H
It+HMEA IEFE
(&E75)
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Weighted average number of ordinary AESRERBRAAERAZ
shares used in the calculation of TmAR R T
basic earnings per share 632,004,371 164,537,688
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEEBRERE ERR I TE
shares - 4,686,224
Weighted average number of RUGTESREERNZ
ordinary shares for the purpose LBAR I T H
of diluted earnings per share 632,004,371 169,223,912

There was no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share
for the Period as there was no dilutive shares outstanding

during the Period.
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The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (Year

Directors’ emoluments

2014: seven) directors were as follows:

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015

Executive directors:
Kong Fanpeng
Chan Cheong Yee

Independent non-executive
directors:
Lam Kwan
Ong Chi King
Lee Ming Gin

HBTES:
fLALE
REE

BYFHTES:

mE
B
FHE

IOR MANAGEMENT’S 15. EEREREEEMS

(a) EE=ME
O ENFRE(CE—NE  +2)EF
ZHEwT

BE_Z-RAFAA=THL+AEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2014

15. EEREREEENE @

(a) EEME (&)
HE_Z-NFEA=THILEE

Other emoluments

Hitn B &
Salaries,
allowances MPF
and other  Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
o2l WEE
e R E A4 7 BT AT Fh
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors: BTES:
Kong Fanpeng LS 360,000 - - - 360,000
Chan Cheong Yee BREH 600,000 - - - 600,000
Tang Tsz Tung iz 348,000 - - - 348,000
(Resigned on 19 June 2014) (R=F—mE
NATAHEE)
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Hung Cho Sing HEE 140,000 - - - 140,000
(Resigned on 30 January 2014) (R —ZF—/4%
—A=1HEF)
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE:
directors:
Lam Kwan OB 120,000 - - - 120,000
Ong Chi King TR 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lee Ming Gin ZHIE 120,000 - - - 120,000
1,808,000 - - - 1,808,000

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the Period and Year 2014. No incentive payment

for joining the Group or compensation for loss for office

was paid or payable to any director during the Period and

Year 2014.

The remuneration of directors including the performance

bonus is determined by the remuneration committee

having regard to the performance of individual and

market trends.
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<o g '

RECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (Year 2014: three) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (Year 2014: two)

highest paid individuals was as follows:

15. EEREREEENE @

(b) EREEEME
AEBRARSHFALTEERA (ZE X
FZR)ARAES  FHEMESFRBEEN L
N HEBp=F(ZF-NF: MB)RSHFA
TZMEwT

Fifteen months

ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BZE BHZE
—E-HF —E-MEF
hB=+H NA=1+H
IE+EH@EA IFFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and e o R RHEHMEF
other benefits 1,344,000 534,041
MPF Scheme contributions WA ® T EIfE R 43,000 24,000
1,387,000 558,041

The emoluments of the three (Year 2014: two) highest
paid individuals fall in the following bands:

B < 48 5
£ 21,000,000/ 7T

Emoluments bands
Nil — HK$1,000,000

=R (CEOF - MB)BEEHFALZHE

BIAT 4R
Number of individuals
AB
Fifteen months

ended Year ended
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
BZE =
—E-AfF —ZT—mF
hA=+H NA=1H
L+ HEA FFE
3 2

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to
any highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) during the Period and Year 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BER&HE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures  equipment  Computers vehicles Vessel Total
RENEEL HGAREE BAZRE B "E WE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT B BT
COST 7%
At 1 July 2013 WR-2-=F+A—H 1,421,831 318,736 215,432 169,300 1,238,000 - 3,363,299
Disposal e - - - - (1,238,000) - (1,238,000)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-ME A=+A
and at 1 July 2014 RZE-mE+A—H 1,421,831 318,736 215,432 169,300 - - 2,125,299
Additions RE - - - - 6,984,804 29,128,735 36,113,539
At 30 September 2015 RZBE-RENA=TH 1,421,831 318,736 215,432 169,300 6,984,804 29,128,735 38,238,838
ACCUMULATED Rt E
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2013 RZE-=%+tf—H 980,004 178,085 137,500 103,505 1,238,000 - 2,637,094
Charge for the year FEENE 363,091 77,267 49,153 27,526 - - 517,037
Disposal HE - - - - (1,238,000) - (1,238,000)
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-mF~A=1H
and at 1 July 2014 L=Z2-mE+f-H 1,343,095 255,352 186,653 131,031 - - 1,916,131
Charge for the period ABERE 78,736 55,829 26,511 30,429 263,568 161,826 616,899
At 30 September 2015 R-E-ZENA=TH 1,421,831 311,181 213,164 161,460 263,568 161,826 2,533,030
CARRYING VALUES EERE
At 30 September 2015 RZE-ZENA=TH - 7,555 2,268 7,840 6,721,236 28,966,909 35,705,808
At 30 June 2014 RZE-MEXAZTH 78,736 63,384 28,779 38,269 - - 209,168
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17. REBME QT 2

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-HF —
hBA=+H ~NA=1H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an RIE ETEE & QA
unlisted associate ZIRBKA 4,500,000 4,500,000
Share of post-acquisition results PRI 18 348 69,212,468 66,995,366
73,712,468 71,495,366
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E—-IF —E-mE
hB=+H ~NAZ+H
HK$ HK$
BT m
Amount due from an associate JE g B 2 N B FRIE 95,842,223 79,453,359

80

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, bears
interest at 8% per annum (Year 2014: 8%) and repayable on

FEM B S NBIRIBTEER  RENKIE (=T
—mEF:8E)FEREBRERER -

demand.
At 30 September 2015, the Group has interest in the following RZE—HAFNA=TH FEBRUTEER
associate: GIkZ ﬁ R
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation Nominal value attributable
Form of and operations of issued  to the Group
business Class of &AL share capital by 3E]
Name of associate structure shares held &% B¥T fEl5#%  Principal activities
YN ¥naRA MRKOEN BB BAHEE ZEA  FEEE
CNI Bullion Limited (“CNI Bullion”) Incorporated Ordinary share ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 30%  Provision of services
RELEBEBRAT B LTak FE 15,000,0007% 7 on trading of gold in
(B BE]) gold market
RREETHZES
B B RERY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of

17. RIME R T 2 (#)
REEBEDRAZREBRMBEEREET B

the Group’s associate is set out below: T

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E-NEF
hA=+H NAZ=Zt+H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 645,871 1,571,452
Bank balances IRIT4E % 100,271,291 183,699
Trade and other receivables JFEE AT PR R e L At JE W R 420,820,866 480,507,311
Total assets wEE 521,738,028 482,262,462
Amount due to the Group A AN S B A 95,842,223 79,453,359
Bank and other borrowings RITREMERK 1,246,819 1,109,229
Trade and other payables JRE <) B 3R B L JE 5 5Kk 178,940,758 163,381,986
Total liabilities FES=R 276,029,800 243,944,574
Net assets BEFE 245,708,228 238,317,888
Group’s share of net assets AEEEGHE  AREEFE
of an associate 73,712,468 71,495,366
Turnover X 51,863,105 75,921,233
Profit (Loss) for the period/year RNER AR EE BT (&) 7,390,341 (189,760,609)
Group’s share of results of NEBME FARGHEAEE
an associate for the period/year 2,217,102 (56,928,183)
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18. A HERE

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E2-RF —E-mF
hWA=+H NA=1HE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted investments, at fair value BARBEIRZIELTRE
(Note) (H1:z) 119,384,000 86,940,000
The movement in the change of fair value is as follows: ANRpEEgES I EEERMOT
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E—-8F —E—-mF
hA=+H NA=ZTHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of the period/year B F K8 86,940,000 34,266,300
Additions NE 67,150,000 86,940,000
Disposals Ek=— - (34,266,300)
Transfer to financial assets at FVTPL BERERARBEFAER
BEHFEE (12.450,000) -
Change in fair values NHhEZ S 6,008,000 -
Impairment RAE (28,264,000) -
At end of the period/year 0 E RS 119,384,000 86,940,000
As at 30 September 2015, certain unlisted available-for-sale R-ZEZE—HFAA=1TH EFTHELHTAHLE
investments were individually determined to be impaired on REERBERERE  NEEEKREZARE
the basis of a material decline in their fair value below cost AIETREERAKAREBBAEEHRAEETS
and adverse changes in the market in which these investees HH 3R AN M) S B I BB R AN £R (B 2 4R B R ] B A
operated which indicated that the cost of the Group’s Rl AEEMETTE -

investment in them may not be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)
Note:

Details of the unlisted equity securities represent investments in

private entities as at 30 September 2015 are as follows:

Place of
Name incorporation
B3
£8 gk

Pure Power Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands
(“Pure Power”) (note i) (the "BVI")
(i) ERENEHS

Easy Ideas Limited (“Easy Ideas”) BVI

(note ii) EBRELES
(&)

Starfame Investments Limited BVI
(“Starfame”) (note i) EBRUES

ERREBRAR ([EB]) (i)

Sincere Smart Int'l Limited BVI
("Sincere Smart") (note iv) (f1itiv) EBEXES

Merit Advisory Limited BVI
("Merit Advisory") (note v) (f7itv) EBEZHES

Particulars
of equity
interest held
FrERA
BRFE

Ordinary share
LR

Ordinary share
EaR

Ordinary share
LR

Ordinary share

TER

Ordinary share
LR

Sincere Smart is one of the ten largest investments of the Group as at

30 September 2015. The remaining nine of the ten largest investments

of the Group as at 30 September 2015 are disclosed in note 19 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

18. T HERE (@)

Wit -

RIZE-RFNAA=+THZIFELTFRAES ERLA

RNAEIZE/E)FBWT -
Acquisition

cost Fair value

I B B A MRE
HK$ HK$

B B
32,500,000 10,892,000
24,440,000 17,784,000
30,000,000 33,858,000
42,700,000 44,100,000
12,000,000 12,750,000

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable

to the Group
FREE
RABEEAL

2.588%

26%

9.9%

14%

15%

Net assets
(liabilities)
value
attributable

to the Group
AREES
BE(88)3E
HK$

BT

(85,405)

(277,304)

9,826,307

499,772

2,115,519

N-_ZE—HREAA="+H - Sincere Smart57REE+ K
BERAZz— R-E—HEFNLA=1+H AEE+K
BERNRZEBNERAFEREAMERENT19HE -
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(Continued)

AILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Pure Power and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
exploration and exploitation of natural resources in the United
State of America. Pure Power is an unlisted equity security.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of Pure Power
was approximately US$86,049 (equivalent to approximately
HK$669,461) and its unaudited consolidated net liability value
as at 31 December 2014 was approximately US$424,169
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,300,035). No dividend was
received during the Period (Year 2014: Nil).

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer, which is not connected with the Group
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

During the Period, an impairment loss of HK$21,608,000 was
provided according to the valuation report. The drop in fair
value was mainly due to significant drop in crude oil price from
approximately US$100 per barrel in June 2014 to approximately
US$40 per barrel in September 2015.

Easy Ideas is principally engaged in the provision of professional
IT service for the development and support of internet and
mobile applications, and the implementation of business
information network and infrastructure. Easy Ideas is an unlisted
equity security. For the financial year ended 30 September 2015,
the unaudited consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of Easy Ideas was approximately HK$9,525 and its unaudited
consolidated net liability value as at 30 September 2015 was
HK$1,066,554. No dividend was received during the Period
(Year 2014: Nil).

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer, which is not connected with the Group
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

The directors consider that the Group does not have significant

influence on Easy Ideas as the Group does not participate in its
board of directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Starfame and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
sales of petrochemical products and planning to step up the
sales of new products including rubber and asphalt. Starfame
is an unlisted equity security. For the financial year ended 31
December 2014, the unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of Starfame was HK$30,377,032 and its unaudited
consolidated net asset value as at 31 December 2014 was
HK$99,255,629. No dividend was received during the Period
(Year 2014: Nil).

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer which is not connected with the Group
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

Sincere Smart and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in software application industry. Sincere Smart is an unlisted
equity security. For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
Sincere Smart was HK$706,319 and its unaudited consolidated
net asset value as at 31 March 2015 was HK$3,569,798. No
dividend was received during the Period.

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer which is not connected with the Group.
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.
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TZA=T—BIEMEEERN - StarfamelR#EH S
ANEMREEREZEA BT R30,377,03208 7T - TR
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Notes: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Merit Advisory and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
investor relationship service. Merit Advisory is an unlisted equity
security. For the financial period ended 30 September 2015, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
Merit Advisory was HK$5,067,110 and its unaudited consolidated
net asset value as at 30 September 2015 was HK$14,103,457.
HK$150,000 dividend was received during the Period.

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer, which is not connected with the Group.
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has disposed of
its investment in Quidam (see note 26(c)).

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has disposed of
its investment in 247 Capital Limited (see note 26(a)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 &=

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 September 2015

ZZ-RFAA=THIETRER

19. B

R-ZE—R¥NAA=+H"

REFAEERECMBEE

BAREFABRE

comprise: B BMBEERE
30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-FfF —
hB=+H ~AZ=Z+H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fair value: NHRE :
Listed securities held for trading BIEEE 2 FTES
— listed in Hong Kong -REEL™ 982,276,147 209,992,210
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL were REFBRAARBEAEBZS J;ﬁfiz MEEEZ AR
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available 7 AR SHEXZT

on the relevant exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars of the listed securities, which are included in the

ten largest investments of the Group held as at 30 September

2015, are as follows:

Name Notes

5% i3

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited i
REERKRERER DA

ICO Group Limited fi
HHEBEAERAT

Sunrise (China) Technology fii
Group Limited
RERREEERAA

Echo International Holdings iv
Group Limited
i (AR EREEERDF

Place of
incorporation

TR AR L 3t B

Cayman Islands

REHE

Cayman Islands

MENS

Cayman Islands

MERES

Cayman Islands

RERE

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Particulars
of equity
interest held

R A
BHFE

Ordinary shares
TER

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
LER

Ordinary shares
LER

EE&E@&%&@XT%@%@
E

B (BER_F
%lJrj(&éfAE ) ZFFIET
Percentage
Market value of equity
as at interest
Acquisition 30 September attributable
cost 2015 to the Group
RZZB-1F S 3]
NAZ+TH EtRAER
B B A ZhE BAl
HK$ HK$
BT B
49,061,426 149,357,400 3.366%
12,755,414 98,034,400 3.323%
116,000,253 77,842,105 26.836%
31,449,587 66,289,600 3.187%

Annual Report 2014/15 &3

—hAFAA=TAKAEZR

Net asset
value
attributable
to the Group
X5E
EhEE
EE

HK$

BT

8,005,200

4,620,411

25,471,840

1,151,846
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5d 30 September 2015 HE=Z —

| ANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
HROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

AFAA=+RILETREAR

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 September 2015
comprise: (Continued)

Name

L

Notes

Hit

L & A International Holdings Limited v

BIRRERARA

WLS Holdings Limited

ERERARA

vi

Jun Yang Financial HoIdings Ltd vii

EEeREEERD

China National Culture Group viii

Limited

PHEERCEXEEERAT

Convoy Financial Holdings Limited  ix

RReBERARD

Place of
incorporation

A 3L B

Cayman Islands

REHE

Bermuda
BRE

Bermuda
BRE

Cayman Islands

HERS

Cayman Islands

REHE

Particulars
of equity
interest held

R A
BHFE

Ordinary shares
ERR

Ordinary shares
TRk

Ordinary shares
Rl

Ordinary shares
TRk

Ordinary shares
LRk

The remaining one (Year 2014: three) of the ten largest

investments of the Group as at 30 September 2015

are disclosed in note 18 to this Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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Acquisition 30 September

cost

WA

HK$

BT

48,750,900

9,458,603

63,701,407

75,138,094

40,724,145
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Percentage
Market value of equity Net asset
as at interest value
attributable  attributable
2015 to the Group to the Group
R-E-1F N3] A5E
NA=+tH EHRTER EiEEE
ZhiE Bak #E
HK$ HK$
B BT
64,260,000 0.510% 642,121
63,000,000 4.954% 14,955,781
62,511,680 4.699% 131,856,324
44,716,968 4.952% 14,945,016
37,599,000 3.071% 39,291,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (stock code: 8006) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the advertising services
through the internet and travel magazines, event organising
services and magazine publication. No dividend was received
during the Period. According to the latest published financial
statements of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$237,812,000.

ICO Group Limited (stock code: 8140) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of information
technology services. No dividend was received during the
Period. According to the latest published financial statements
of ICO Group Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$139,035,000.

Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited (stock code: 8226)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
management services to group companies, provision of technical
desulphurisation services, manufacturing and sales of straw
briquette, and trading of commodities. No dividend was received
during the Period. According to the latest published financial
statements of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited, it had
net assets value of approximately HK$94,918,000.

The directors consider that the Group does not have significant
influence on Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited as the
Group does not participate in its board of directors.

Echo International Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8218)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of electronic products and accessories. No dividend
was received during the Period. According to the latest published
financial statements of Echo International Holdings Group
Limited, it had net assets value of approximately HK$36,142,000.

L & A International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8195) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
marketing of garment products, investment holding and leasing
of motor vehicle and retailing of garment products. No dividend
was received during the Period. According to the latest published
financial statements of L & A International Holdings Limited, it
had net assets value of approximately HK$125,906,000.
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(iii)
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PEERIRRZELAR QA (B AR - 8006) &
HBAR T ENEEBEMENIREMSET
EESERYE - BIEHRE MBS ES - R©
AHARE I M UERAE AT ALS, © 1RIR P B EE IR R
BERAPEMTIH U BRE  REAEFHEOR
237,812,000/ 7T ©

BREBBRAR (RMHAE : 8140) REMB R
AIE BN FREENB IR ER - RAHM I &
W BRI AR B, - RIKIG R R BB R A A EIFIE 2
B Rk - REEFEL A139,035,00075 5T ©

hERREEBRAR (B RE - 8226) M HEHK
BAREERENRERNBREERRS - fRHEB
MEWRSE LERHERRERLARE S X
% o AR BRI YRR IR B - IRIEh BRI S
BEERAREMTHMBEHRE  RAEFENS
94,918,000/% 7T °

HERA  HAREETESRESHEEEAER
ARZEFE EAHHAPELTEA -

%= (BR) ZiEEmARQR (B RS 8218)
FENBAREZEZREEFERMEHEERES
1 o RABR L BB IUERRS - RERS (H
BOEREEERABLHNE 2 MBRE  HE
B4 7336,142,000/8 7T °

LOEEREERERAT (RHOM - 8195) KEM
BATIFENEFRERMHENKER - REZRK
FAESBEURTERKERER - NAHIM I &K
HAEAI AR B, o R 4% 44 36 BB 45 AR A PR A A3 8 )8
2R - HEEFEL /125,906,000 7T ©
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.ANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The

WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the manufacturing of plastic ties,
provision of transportation services, property holding, money
lending, fitting out business, provision of management
contracting services, scaffolding works business, provision of
consultancy services and trading, rental, design, sales, repairs
and maintenance of gondolas and parapet railings and access
equipment installation and maintenance services. No dividend
was received during the Period. According to the latest published
financial statements of WLS Holdings Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$301,911,000.

Jun Yang Financial Holdings Ltd (stock code: 0397) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the investment
holding, securities trading, property investment, provision for
money lending, operation of amorphous silicon thin film solar
photovoltaic power station, and provision of regulated activity in
connection with dealing in securities. No dividend was received
during the Period. According to the latest published financial
statements of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Ltd, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$2,806,217,000.

China National Culture Group Limited (stock code: 0745) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the food and beverages
industry advertising business, movie production, consultation on
advertising services and property investment. No dividend was
received during the Period. According to the latest published
financial statements of China National Culture Group Limited, it
had net assets value of approximately HK$301,770,000.

Convoy Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the IFA business,
money lending business, proprietary investment business,
asset management business and corporate finance advisory
services. No dividend was received during the Period. According
to the latest published financial statements of Convoy Financial
Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$1,279,625,000.

Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of

HK$738,561,777 (Year 2014: HK$194,767,210) to secure the
margin payable granted to the Group.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

EREERAR AR (BRHASE:8021) REMEBAR
TERERELBRY  REEBRYE - MESE -
fEE - BREXE RHEEEAORY  BHBTR
2% REBHERBLRES  BE - RFHHE
HERRESHMTIES  HEMLREREESRMZ
R BEIRT - RANERE L S REVERRS - 1R
BEEZERERQARIHNE 2HBRE  HEE
FE#)/301,911,000/8 7T °

5 & ghiz H&ﬁﬂﬁ’&i(ﬂxf’ﬁﬁsﬁ 0397) K E M
%/&Tfﬂiﬁ%&ﬁ% BE  WERE -
R Eﬁzﬁ . zg%#aaﬁiﬁfﬂ%ﬂﬁ %ﬁ*iﬁ&ﬁﬁi\
BHABHET 2 ZRERD o RAHRM I & KERE
A& S - RIEEFS ¢ B IEAR A R Q8T 8T 2 8
B - HAEFEL A2,806,217,0007 7T ©

PEBEZREEXEEBRRAR (BMHKE : 0745)
REMBARIBENRERRERSEY BEFH
7 REERBREEBARDEREEDE - RAH
I | ALS » RIBPEBEREEXEE
BERABEHMTE M BHRE  REEFEOR
301,770,000/ 7T °

BEREBERAR DR (BRHAS  1019) REM
BAREBENEBURMERER BEEK 8
EREXY EEEBEEBROERERBRS X
o RAHM Y BUEERERS - RIZERZSBIE
BAERABMMTIE HBEHE - REAEFENR
1,279,625,0007% 7T ©

AEEEEMRARBFABRREZHBEE

738,561,777 70 (Z & — U 4F :

194,767,210/%8

TOERAEERRENRES 2ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. AARNE - RERHEMEWKE
RECEIVABLES

30 September 30 June

2015 2014

—E—EHfF —E—MmF

hB=+H ~A=+H

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Prepayments T RIA - 153,817

Deposits Re 5,050,000 577,966

Other receivables H b fE W SR IE 77,789,105 58,379,474
Amounts receivable on disposal of HER N ERE 2 B EIE

available-for-sale investments 52,304,551 94,685,606

135,143,656 153,796,863
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERIBEER - (9,564,235)

135,143,656 144,232,628

Less: Shown under current assets YRR BEEET (130,143,656) (106,732,628)
Shown under non-current assets PIRIERBEEIR 5,000,000 37,500,000
The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables is HibhpE R IB 2 BEEEEs M T :
as follows:
HK$
BT
At beginning and end of Year 2014 RZE—WFEYI &K 9,564,235
Written off during the Period 7 HA R i 8 (9,564,235)
At 30 September 2015 RZE—RAFHLA=1+H -
The carrying amounts of prepayment, deposits and other REPEEAR - FERZRIE - RS REMERZIE S B
receivables at the end of the reporting period approximated MEHEAAEREE RN-_Z—mWESA=+H " 5
their fair values. At 30 June 2014, other receivables of 209,564,235 7T M EWZIBE T ADHE -
HK$9,564,235 were determined to be impaired. The FE A FE Uk 2008 O 0 AN HA RS 2 B g o
corresponding receivables have been fully written off during
the Period.
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21.

22.

-~

PAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in other receivables are the following advances to
third parties of the Group:

(a) Margin receivables of HK$69,428,532 (Year 2014:
HK$48,004,016) are generated from investment in
financial assets at FVTPL, with interest rate ranged from
0.001% to 0.003% (Year 2014: 0.001% to 0.003%) per
annum for the Period.

(b) The outstanding balance due from the purchaser
of IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited (“IIN”) is
HK$19,414,718 (Year 2014: HK$32,345,512). Pursuant
to the agreement signed with the purchaser, the deal
to sell IIN was completed on 30 December 2011. The
balance is interest- bearing at 5% per annum at 30
September 2015.

(c) The outstanding balance due from the purchaser of
UCCTV Holdings Limited (“UCCTV”) is HK$19,889,877
(Year 2014: HK$38,123,345). Pursuant to the agreement
signed with the purchaser, the deal to sell UCCTV
was completed on 25 December 2011. The balance
is interest- bearing at 5% per annum at 30 September
2015.

(d) The outstanding balance due from the purchaser of
Richbird Holdings Limited (“Richbird”) is HK$13,000,000
(Year 2014: HK$15,500,000). Pursuant to the agreement
signed with the purchaser, the deal to sell Richbird was
completed on 30 June 2014.

BANK BALANCES

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits of
HK$191,513,142 (Year 2014: HK$147,384,719) at prevailing
market rate.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals include HK$129,282,722 (Year:
HK$63,357,105) of margin payable which are generated from
investment in financial assets at FVTPL with interest rate
ranged from 8.25% to 10% per annum for the Period (Year
2014: 8.25% to 10%) and payable for acquisition for listed
securities of HK$116,000,000 as at 30 September 2015.
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BMNRE > B R H MEKKRE @

HEbEURBRBE TR TAEEE =7 28K

(@) RAHE REERAABFABRSZEEY
B 75 4 = B HE R WK T R 5X7869,428,5328 7T
(ZZ—JU4F : 48,004,01678 JT) JH IR F | &
0.001E £0.003[E (—Z—PU4 : 0.001E &
0.003F )5 & -

(b) 1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited
(TIND) BB K& R 8428 /219,414,718 7T
(ZZ—DO4F : 32,345,5128 1)  RIFEZ
ERFIINHE  LEINORZERZE
——F+ZA=tHEK -RZZE—EHFh
A=+8  fBERFHNESEFTE -

(c) UCCTV Holdings Limited ([UCCTV]) W E
K MK #4%E 519,889,877 7T (—E—P04 ¢
38,123,345 L)  IRIBEHEZ ERETH
# o HEBEUCCTVIRSERZE—F +=
A-+RBER"K - R-_ZET—RHEHALA=T
B RBVRENERSEE -

(d) Richbird Holdings Limited ([ Richbird |) K] &
5K i /R #4588 /513,000,000/8 7T (= F — P 4F
15,500,000/ 7T) - RIFHEZ E K 5] 2
&% AL ERIchbirdZ X SE R T — U4
NAZ+BREK -

RITHEER
RITHEBBIERBTMSNEGT B ZEBHRTE
191,513,142 70 (—Z —PU4E : 147,384,719
JL) °

HttESRERETER

Hibh RSB R BT EABREASRERERERZ
AAEFABZREEZVBEEMELE BNHE
0 I18129,282,722/8 7T (—F — Y4 : 63,357,105
BIL) > FFEAE8.25EE10E (ZF—PUF :8.25
EZ10E)  MER-_ZE—RENA=+HERK
B8 F R % 2 7 18116,000,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. B
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of Nominal
HK$0.001 each HK$0.005 each Value
BREE BREMAE
0.001B T2 0.005’8 T 2
ZERE ZTERHA H{E
Notes HK$
Wizt AT
Authorised : FERE
At 1 July 2013, RZE—=%+A—H8"
30 June 2014 ZE-MERA=ZTER
and 1 July 2014 —E-mFELA—AH 200,000,000,000 - 200,000,000
Share consolidation B3 & B (200,000,000,000) 40,000,000,000 -
At 30 September 2015 R-ZE-RFhA=+A - 40,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid : ERTRAR:
At 1 July 2013 RZE—=F+tA—H 100,928,683 - 100,929
Issue of shares by rights issue VAR 77 B TR (a) 50,464,341 - 50,464
Issue of shares by open offer NARBEEFABETRG (b) 685,572,096 - 685,572
Conversion of convertible bonds X3 a[ # % (& % (c) 20,000,000 - 20,000
Exercise of warrants TERRES (d) 99,430,619 - 99,431
At 30 June 2014 and RZZE-MERA=ZTHER
1 July 2014 —E-MFELA—H 956,395,739 - 956,396
Exercise of warrants 1T R R R (e) 21,736,337 70,121 22,087
Share consolidation B & 6f () (978,132,076) 195,626,415 -
Issue of shares by NARBEFABITRD
open offer (9) - 1,369,384,905 6,846,925
At 30 September 2015 R-ZZE-RFAA=+H - 1,565,081,441 7,825,408
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(b)

(d)

(e)

5d 30 September 2015 HE=Z —

On 29 July 2013, the Company issued 50,464,341 ordinary
shares under the rights issue of rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.65 each on the basis of one rights share for every
two existing shares held on 2 July 2013. Total consideration
amounted to HK$32,801,822 of which HK$50,464 was credited
to share capital and the remaining proceeds of HK$31,067,303,
after offsetting the share issuance costs of HK$1,684,055, were
credited to the share premium account.

On 17 April 2014, the Company completed the open offer
(“Open Offer”) on the basis of four offer shares for every one
existing share held on 25 March 2014 with the bonus issue
on the basis of one bonus warrant for every four offer shares
taken up. 685,572,096 offer shares were issued at an offer
price of HK$0.25 with 171,393,024 warrant shares being issued.
Total consideration amounted to HK$171,393,024 of which
HK$685,572 was credited to share capital and the remaining
proceeds of HK$166,422,626, after offsetting the share issuance
costs of HK$4,284,826, were credited to the share premium
account.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, convertible bonds
with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 were converted into
20,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.001 each at
a conversion price of HK$1 each.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, 99,430,619 warrants were
exercised at a price of HK$0.25 into 99,430,619 ordinary shares
of HK$0.001 each in the Company. The net proceeds from the
exercise of warrants were approximately HK$24,857,655.

During the Period, 21,736,337 and 70,121 warrants were
exercised at a price of HK$0.25 and HK$0.41 respectively,
converting into 21,736,337 and 70,121 ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 and HK$0.005 each respectively. The net proceeds
from the exercise of warrants was approximately HK$5,462,834.
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(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)
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)\E’Q\_”—*iﬁﬂ THhA KRBT HERR

R (ESR0.65/% L8 1750,464,341 R E @R -
EEAN_ZT-—=-F+LA_AGEARBRBRER
MEBE —RERR D - 481K (E32,801,822/8 7T
B 504648 TERIRAANR R TBHRIE
31,067,303 T 1A 15 5 % 19 25 17 5 52 1,684,055/8
TLE R R B ER AR ©

RZZ—WENA++EH - ARFIE K AR
(IAREE]) EEAR-_T—NF=A= +£
HERHE - RIBARGER R UREERD

AR BT - %’gt’jtwu\ﬁﬁmﬂxg*%ﬂxfﬁjgﬁﬂﬁ—
AT B AL HE B - 685,572,068 3 E R DR E
{80.257% 7T 2 171,393,024 8% 52 % # 75 % 1) B 1 %
17 ° #R[E171,393,0247 LEF - 685,572 T2
RN - MR T FT15 518166,422,6267% ;T A
55 % 1) 3517 79 24,284,8268 T 14 O A R 10 % (B
BRARR ©

BE-_ZT-NFAA-+THLFEHM A&
20,000,000/ T 2 Al # AR (& 7 B iR @ R B & R 18
JT K, 3% & 7K A 520,000,000 4% & % [l (E0.0017% 7T
2wk o

HzeE-_Z-WFEFANA=Z+BLEFEHB
99,430,61917 RAREZ 2T - $20.258 L2 B
& 4, #/399,430,6 198 F IR M E0.001E T 2 A A
RGO - TERREBZFABSRBIFELA
24,857,655/%8 JT

RAEAR © 21,736,33715 % 70,1215 R X i 2%
%IH;zo.zs,%mzzo.M,%nz{%ma%ﬁz%m,736,337
& &R E{E0.001/%8 7T 70,121l & AR E{E0.005/8
T ERRG - ITERREE 2 TS REFRENA
5,462,834/ 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

23.

24,

B S R AR MY

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(f)  With effect from 12 June 2015, every five (5) issued and
unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.001 each were
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of the Company of
HK$0.005 each.

(g) On 9 July 2015, the Company completed the open offer (“Open
Offer”) on the basis of seven offer shares for every one existing
share held on 23 June 2015. 1,369,384,905 offer shares
were issued at on offer price of HK$0.25. Total consideration
amounted to HK$342,346,227 of which HK$6,846,925 was
credited to share capital and the remaining proceeds of
HK$331,900,049 after offsetting the share issuance costs of
HK$3,599,253 were credited to the share premium account.

WARRANTS

Upon completion of the Open Offer (Note 23(b)), for every
four offer shares taken up in the Open Offer one bonus
warrant would be issued. A total of 171,393,024 units of
the warrants (“Warrants”) with an aggregate subscription
amount of HK$42,848,256 were issued on 17 April 2014.
Each of the Warrants confers rights to the registered holder
to subscribe for one new share of the Company in cash at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.25 per share, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustment, at any time from the date of issue up to
and including 17 April 2016.

Pursuant to the terms of the Warrants, the exercise price of
the Warrants shall be adjusted from HK$0.25 per consolidated
share to HK$1.25 per consolidated share upon completion of
the share consolidation (Note 23(f)), and from HK$1.25 per
consolidated share to HK$0.41 per consolidated share upon
completion of the Open Offer (Note 23(g)).

During the Period, 21,736,340 and 70,122 warrants were
exercised at a price of HK$0.25 and HK$0.41 respectively,
converting into 21,736,340 and 70,122 new ordinary shares in
the Company of HK$0.001 and HK$0.005 each respectively.

At 30 September 2015, the Company had 30,555,530 (Year
2014: 71,962,405) outstanding Warrants. Exercise in full
of such outstanding Warrants would result in the issue of
30,555,530 (Year 2014: 71,962,405) additional shares.
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&N )
Hiit - (&)

) B-ZEZ-—HRENAT-_BE AQATDNFHG)KE
B0.001B L2 BEBEITRABITRNDEEGHA—()
A& AN X B A% T {20.0055% 7T 2 & BERR 1D ©

(99 R-ZZE—AFLtANB ARAFEZKARAEE
(IAREE])  BEAR_T—RAFA A=-+=AH
BREE-BREERMAUBELREERG - AQA
B 1% % & {80.25/8 7T 171,369,384,905% % & %
15 o 48 (8342,346,227 BT E F + 6,846,925/ 7T

BEEFARARR - 155K IB £ 78331,900,0497%8 T 1
55 % 1) 2817 B F3 3,599,253/ T 14 O 5T AR 1D %
BEEMA °

AR R
RAREE (K F23(b)) B E  RAFEEF
SRBUBRBEERGCEE DA FRRES -
EAff MEMA++H A #£171,393,0241%
RBREF ((RREE])BERT BRBEA
42,848,256 T ° @%Hﬂgsﬁ,ﬂm%ﬁﬁaaﬁﬁ
AEFAIRETEREEERBE_S—FHO
HthElJt,Hﬁf‘aﬂﬁaaHﬂ;z%ﬂf/Faﬂ,ﬂ%EHxﬁxf“o 25
B (IRBEREETUAR) URERE R
RNAFTARD ©

Wﬁwﬂﬂg’ﬁ B RERRGE O (K&
23(f)) 1% RREZBZ2TEEHBAERE RN
0.25 5 THZEEFREHIRMN1.258 7T * MRTK
NHBE (I5E23(g)) 18 - BHEEKRE HRKH1.25
BTHEZGRA FR7D0.41758 T -

AN EIfE - 21,736,34010 &70,122 R EE B2
2 RI120.258 7T X041 BT 2 ER B AR QA
21,736,340 & JX FI{H0.00178 7T 2 70,122/% & i%
H{E0.005/8 T 2 ¥T Z BA% (9 ©

WZE—RAFNLA=1+8H " ~27%AF30,555530
1" T[4 : 71,962,405 5 AR ITIE R A% HE
o BRAM AT R B RS TE B E B
% 1730,555,530/% (— T — P 4F : 71,962,4050%)
B o
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26.

Fr Y
W ool
[ ONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Period, the Group has struck off the following
subsidiaries:

—  Kenabell Trading Limited
—  Canterberry Investments Limited
—  Million Full Assets Limited

The directors considered the Group’s control over the
aforementioned subsidiaries has been lost. For the purpose
of appropriate presentation and in order to allow the public to
evaluate the performance of the Group, the aforementioned
subsidiaries were excluded from the Group’s consolidation.

The subsidiaries deconsolidated during the Period did not
have any contribution to the Group’s revenue and operating
results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group disposed of
the following subsidiaries:

(a) In December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Long Surplus
Investments Limited (“Long Surplus”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Long Surplus was an
investment holding company which held an available-for-
sale investment in 247 Capital Limited (see note 18 (vii)).
The disposal was completed during the year ended 30
June 2014 and upon the disposal, the Group lost control
of Long Surplus.

(b) In February 2014, the Group disposed its 100% equity
interest in CNI Finance Limited (the “CNI Finance”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. CNI Finance
has been inactive for a several years. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 30 June 2014 and upon
the disposal, the Group lost control of CNI Finance.

(c) In June 2014, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose of its 100% equity interest in Richbird, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Richbird was an
investment holding company which held an available-
for-sale investment in Quidam (see note 18 (vi)). The
disposal was completed during the year ended 30
June 2014 and upon disposal, the Group lost control of
Richbird.
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25.

26.

THBEIANELE
RASR  ALECBR THMHEAR

— Kenabell Trading Limited
— Canterberry Investments Limited
— Million Full Assets Limited

EERR AEECKREY LMK EB AR ZES
¥ REE2YRELARALFEAEE ZREA
LRMBARERAKREZHZARE PSR -

RAHB I BERAZHBLARLELSAEE 2K
M REEERELER -

i B Ff 2 F]
BE-T-NGNASTRLFEEN A£8
BEETIIMERA :

(@ R-ZE—=ZHF+_F AEHITLWHH
HEARRQE 2 EMNE A FLong Surplus
Investments Limited ([Long Surplusl) Z
100%%# ° Long SurplusJy— KL EZE A
7] » H#H247 Capital LimitedZ AJ £ &
BE (R WEE18(vii) - BEHEEREZEZ
T—NERNA=ZTHIEFEARARRK  RIEE
% » KREBT BB Long Surplus Z 4 o

by RZET—WME_F AEMEEKRRA
% & I B 2 5ICNI Finance Limited ([ CNI
Finance]) 2100%/%# - CNI Finance%
RIUWTER - FELEERBE_ST—HF
NAZTHILEFERTK  REEE K&
=~ 45 A CNI Finance 2 1% I 7 -

(c) RZZT—WFENA AEETZHENUE
B AR Az %2 E M E R FRichbird,z100%
BE#E - Richbirdh —RIEEEBR QA HH
Quidamz A #f & % & (R M 5E18(vi)) ©
ERHEERHEE-_TE—NEA=1H
LFEEARNRTR - -REER  AEETHEA
Richbird,Z 1% | # °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

26. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities attributable

27.

26. HEMBELQFE @

ZELHEMNBARAREAZHERRREEZEE

to these disposed subsidiaries on the respective dates of kaFEREsEymT
disposal were as follows:
Long CNI Year ended
Surplus Finance Richbird 30 June 2014
HZE
—ET-mE
NA=18
HFE
Total
Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Satisfied by: ATRH AR AT
Cash B 8,000,000 - 15,500,000 23,500,000
Less: Net assets (liabilities) disposed of: WoLEZEE(BE)FE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 15,760,800 - 18,505,500 34,266,300
Loan receivable R E TR - - 139,096 139,096
Other receivables H iy jE W 3B - - 8,741 8,741
Other payables Hofth & 5 508 - (2,050) - (2,050)
15,760,800 (2,050) 18,653,337 34,412,087
Add: Reclassified from other m: BEMEEEE
comprehensive income EFHE - - 3,238,500 3,238,500
(Loss) gain on disposal of HERBRRZ
subsidiaries (B518) s (7,760,800) 2,050 85,163  (7,673,587)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEEZES
TAFE
Total cash consideration received BWBRERE 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Total cash consideration receivable R EReRE - - 15,500,000 15,500,000
Total Bat 8,000,000 - 15,500,000 23,500,000

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on

the net asset value of the Group as at 30 September 2015
of HK$1,333,910,271 (30 June 2014: HK$686,211,484)
and on the number of 1,565,081,441 ordinary shares of
HK$0.005 each in issue as at 30 September 2015 (Year 2014:
956,395,739 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each).

27. BREEFE
BREEFENREAEER-_ZE—AFNLA=T
A 2 & E $181,333,910,2718 L (=T — M E X
A=+1H8 :686,211,4848 L) kR —ZE—AHF A
BZ=+ Bz SREE0.0058 L2 O 31T & B
H1,565,081,441% (ZZ— M4 : §RE(E0.001

76 77,7.956,395, 73908 LMk ) 5t E o
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28. AEANTRBAERS

(a) In addition to those disclosed in other sections of the (a) REMBHREREMEDDAAEREEIN AR

financial statements’ the Group entered into the following R FEARNEEEREES REEALE
transactions with related parties and connected parties IZRWT :

during the Period/year:

Year ended
30 June
2014
#Hz=
—T—lF
NAZTH
HFE
Notes HK$
og=3 BT
China Angel Fund Management FEXFEESER
(HK) Company Limited (HB)ARRQA]
(“CAFM”) ([CAFM])
Investment management TRNEREERE
fee paid i 480,000
Insight Capital Management Insight Capital Management
(HK) Limited (“Insight Capital’) (HK) Limited ([ Insight Capital )
Investment management TR EERS
fee paid ii -
Quidam Quidam
Interest income received 2 W F B M A jii 3,338,578
CNI Bullion Limited PRI 2 REFR QA
Interest income received B F B A iv 5,829,427
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

28. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the Period/year was as follows:

Short-term benefits g B 42 A

28.

BEATIRBEERSZ (&)

(b)y TEEEBEABZMSE
N FENEEREMEISEEERE
ZWemT

Fifteen months

ended Year ended

30 September 30 June
2015 2014

BZE S
—E-AfF —E-F
hB=+H ~A=+H
Et+HMEA IEFE
HK$ HK$

BT BT
1,650,000 1,808,000

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with
the terms of the arrangements governing the transactions
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

EENTIETHRABZMEe I HFNEE S 2R
BFEZEARBLTSBEEE

BUFRTEERS  LAFEBEALTZRHTIRN
AEENAEREEXRBARTZE-REABHK
FETREBTEERBRIIRHZGHR A
BIGERAFEE  YATAAARRRNERER

o

BX
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29.

5 "TeX _
T

_ATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to an investment management agreement (“CAFM
Agreement”) dated 31 May 2012 entered into between the
Company and CAFM, CAFM agreed to provide the Company
with investment management services (excluding general
administrative services) commencing on 1 June 2012. The
Company has terminated the agreement since October 2014.

(ii)  Pursuant to an investment agreement (“Insight HK Agreement”)
dated 17 October 2014 entered into between the Company
and Insight HK, Insight HK agreed to provide the Company
with investment management services (excluding general
administrative services) commencing from 21 October 2014.
Pursuant to its terms, Insight HK Agreement is renewable
automatically for successive periods of two years each upon
expiry unless terminated by either the Company or Insight HK
serving not less than 3 months’ prior notice in writing on the
other party. Currently the monthly investment advisory fee is
HK$50,000.

(iiiy The Group had disposal of 18.25% equity interest in Quidam
during the year ended 30 June 2014. The term loan was
unsecured, bore interest at 8% per annum and has been fully
settled at 30 June 2014.

(iv) The Group had 30% equity interest in CNI Bullion at 30
September 2015. The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at
8% per annum and repayable on demand.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 30 September 2015, the Group had pledged the following
assets to secure the margin payables:

28.

29.

Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABRRE

oo

REATRRERS (#)
wit

(iy MRERARYECAFMR-_T——FHA=+—HF]
Sz REE R ([CAFMER ) - CAFME E H
- ANA-HERARARREREETER
B (—MITBRTEBRAN) - RARE B =T —MNF
+RAREKIEEBHE -

(i) MR¥EARRQF Hinsight HKETSZ BH# A — T — 0 4F
TA++EHBZEREWE ([Insight HKIREE ) -
Insight HKRIEH —ZZ—NF+ A =-+—HERX
RERHRETERE (—RITBREERSN) - R
FREARF - Insight HKIBZ TR ERE BB ELHO W
& BARRF S Insight HKA] A 5 & BT DR =
BAZERESEBM TR - BEEE AREER
£ 550,000/ 7T °

(i) BEZZT-—NFXA=THLEFEHHE  KEED
& Quidam 2 18.25% I 1 - F R E N A A -
REMEEFBERER_E—NFA=THZ
HEE-

(iv) RCE—RENB=+H FEEBEEHELEY
30%MHE - ST EAE F A mIEIR - IR FIKeE &
RARERMEE -

BEHREE
R-Z—AFNAZ+A AEEEATIE
EfFARARENFRIAZER :

30 September 30 June
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mEF
hA=+H ANA=1H
HK$ HK$

BT BT

738,561,777 194,767,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

31.

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of approximately HK$64,892 (Year 2014: HK$49,895)
represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
in respect of the current financial Period.

PENDING LITIGATION

In HCA 1700/2011, the Defence was filed by the legal
representative of the Company in December 2011. For almost
4 years, the Plaintiff has not taken any further steps at all in
respect of pursuing the proceedings. The Plaintiff is under
an active role to conduct a case, especially after the Civil
Justice Reform in 2009, otherwise the case may be struck out
for want of prosecution. The Plaintiff must have a very good
reason to avoid the case to be struck out. Further, the said
law suit involves in a dishonoured cheque for the amount of
HK$39,000,000 allegedly payable to the Plaintiff, and it has
always been the view of the Company’s legal representative
that the Plaintiff’s claim is totally unsubstantiated. The
Company has given instructions to their legal representative
to make an application to strike out the claim with costs for (1)
lack of merits; and (2) want of prosecution, in the near future.

EHAIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

30.

31.

RIKERGTE
AEBBRERIENBESAIEINREERS
HigfRert el EBERY —BEEHRKBRBES
2 -HRNOREBEREZERNF 2B LAE
YREZEESHEZRINEANFERERA
Nk -ZRBEetEzEER—EBYERES
FA BAKBEZEENFRE AEBZREE
HERARESFT ARG E2HBRERERA -

RErEEm RNk 2 8K A 464,842F T (ZF
— P04 : 49,895/ 7T ) 5 7% 4= [ kAN B IR HARS M) 7%
SHEEMNZHR -

B BIHCA 1700/2011 * AR GEZR RN T
——F T ZAANEREE - REAMNF AR E
METHARIGE— T - RE(FRIRN=F
TNFEZRERVERIENRER) BEXBEERM
E RIS ] g B B AR TR e AR A A B 7T B i 4 5
e REERLIITRDZEANBREMGHES
Broo gboh  EHUERFR S REBERRE A
— 5K $ %8 539,000,000/8 LA R BE A K L2 - 1
KRB ERRREBERBRBERENRETS
MZIBE - EN(NBEERRRRTEDIERE  R(Q2)
FRRFREAELTE  AQRBERMEER
ERURKRKRBEINGRBEARERDE -
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Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment [R5 K 5
Interests in subsidiaries iNCINEVNCIPR 3
Amounts receivable on disposal HEAHREEREZ
of available-for-sale investments FE W R IE
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE
Current assets mENE E
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE  RE Rk
other receivables E & WK IR
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE 5 I a8 2 R R E
Bank balances RITHE
Current liabilities neEraE

Other payables and accruals

H o R IE R e B

Net current assets mBEEFE
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital [i& Zx
Reserves i
Total equity attributable to RATIRERAA
equity holders of the Company eI B E

E#AIRBRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED
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30 June
2014
—E-mF
~A=+H
HK$

BT

203,176
72

28,500,000
5,513,629

34,216,877

27,198,071
451,411,756
125,881,625

604,491,452

1,083,242

603,408,210

637,625,087

956,396
636,668,691

637,625,087



33. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

33. AR E#EE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

Capital Convertible
reduction bonds Retained
Share premium reserve reserve profits Total
N EE:1
KB EE HIF B BHRE REER @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 July 2013 RZE-=FtA-8 348,141,145 22,826,010 3,660,000 7,148,733 381,775,888
Profit and total comprehensive income FEEEFR2AKELE - - - 11,039,958 11,039,958
for the year
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue NERAABTERER
(Note 23(a)) (H1:223(a) 32,751,358 - - - 32,751,358
Share issue expenses (Note 23(a)) RIVEITER (Wi25(3) (1,684,055) - - - (1,684,055)
Issue of ordinary shares by open offer NRRAZEFARTERAR
(Note 23(b)) (H1:223(6)) 170,707,452 - - - 170,707 452
Share issue expenses (Note 23(b)) RIVEITER (W23(0) (4,284,826) - - - (4,284,826)
Exercise of warrants (Note 23(d)) TRk E (W23(0) 24,758,224 - - - 24,758,224
Conversion of convertible bonds HATARES
(Note 23(c)) (H1:223(c) 25,264,692 - (3,660,000) - 21,604,692
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-EERA=TH 595,653,990 22,826,010 - 18,188,691 636,668,691
At 1 July 2014 RZZ-mELA—H 595,653,990 22,826,010 - 18,188,691 636,668,691
Loss and total comprehensive income TERBER2ENALE - - - (6,706,161) (6,706,161)
for the period
Issue of ordinary shares by open offer WRREERXETEAR
(Note 23(g)) (H:223(g)) 335,499,302 - - - 335,499,302
Share issue expenses (Note 23(g)) RIVEITER (Wi23(9) (3,599,253) - - - (3,599,253)
Exercise of warrants (Note 23(g)) TRk E (W23(e)) 5,440,747 - - - 5,440,747
At 30 September 2015 RZZ-REFNA=TH 932,994,786 22,826,010 - 11,482,530 967,303,326
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(i)

(if)

:,v;a September 2015 &% ~F—

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in share premium account are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is derived after setting off
of the capital reduction with the accumulated losses as
at the date of the capital reorganization of the Company
which became effective on 8 February 2013.

(iii) Convertible bonds reserve

(iv)

The convertible bonds reserve represents the
unexercised equity component of the convertible bond
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bond.

Distributability of reserves

At 30 September 2015 and 30 June 2014, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for the distribution to the
owners of the Company calculated in accordance with
the laws of the Cayman Islands was HK$967,303,326
and HK$636,668,691 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at

30 September 2015 are as follows:

Class of
Name shares held
A1 R 585
Concolor Holdings Limited Ordinary
el
Kendervon Profit Inc. Ordinary
AR
Ethnocentric Investment Limited Ordinary
LR
Like Capital Limited Ordinary
(formerly known as CNI Lk
Capital Limited)
(A FECNI Capital Limited)
Huge Energy Holdings Limited Ordinary
LRR
Smart Able Holdings Limited Ordinary
Ll
Extra One Investments Limited Ordinary

Place of
incorporation,”
registration
and operations
AL
BRREELE

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
RERLES/BE

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
RERZEE /B

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
KBELES/BR

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
RERLES/BR

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
RBEZHE /B

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
RERZHSE/BR

4. TENELF
R-E—AFNAZ+E ARAMBEZEE

MEABZFBOT :
Nominal value Percentage
of issued share of equity
and fully paid attributable to

share capital the Company Principal activities

ERTROK KRR

HBERAHE READ TEEH

Directly  Indirectly
E# &
US$1 100% - Investment holding
1% REER
US$1 100% - Investment holding
(E RE R
US$1 100% - Investment holding
E REER
HK$3 - 100% Investments of listed
IBTT securities in
Hong Kong
RERERBZ LTES
US$1 100% - Investments of listed
(E securities in
Hong Kong
REREBZ IWES

US$1 100% - Investment holding
(E REER
US$1 100% - Investment holding
(B REER
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35.

l}']‘- X
CIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
as at the end of the Period or at any time during the Period.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group leases its offices under operating lease
arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year

34,

35.
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30 September 30 June
2015 2014
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HK$ HK$

BT BT
217,405 -

Lease for rented premise are negotiated for an average of two
years and rental are fixed for an average of two years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE WIS ERARMEE

For the fifteen months ended 30 September 2015 #Z =2 —FAFNA=+HI+HEA

36.

37.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 November 2015, the Board proposed for a bonus issue
of shares on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 1 existing
share held by the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 22
December 2015 (“Record Date”) subject to the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company, rank pari passu
in all respects with the shares in issue as at the Record Date.
The bonus issue was approved at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 11 December 2015.

Further details of the bonus issues (including its timetable) are
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 26 November 2015.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures for the consolidated financial statements
may not be comparable with that of the Period due to the
change of accounting date for the Period mentioned in note 1
to the consolidated financial statements.
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audited financial statements, is set out as follows:

Group_for the last five financial period/years, as extracted from the

AEBRELERYBRR2BED BN BGEF
BZBTI#EE BEERGEREHRINET :

RESULTS e
Fifteen months
end Yearended Yearended Yearended  Year ended
30 September 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-Hf —T-QmF <—T-=F ZET--F ZT——F
AB=+H ~NAZ=Z+A ~NA=ZTH ~NAZ=Z+A ~NA=ZTH
E+EEA EFE FFE HFE IEEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Turnover BEH 406,671,315 136,230,385 21,124,405 (148,462,292) (984,164)
Profit (loss) before tax BREiA 2 (E8) 358,403,182 60,360,411  (7,821,511) (100,793,697) 23,371,420
Income tax FriE (60,922,203) 12,204,732 - - -
Profit (loss) for the period/year attributable 722 @IfZHERE A A
to equity holders of the Company I EAR A
(E#) 297,480,979 72,565,143  (7,821,511) (100,793,697) 23,371,420
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHARE
30 September 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E2-5§% —"T-QmF CZT-=Ff ZT-fF ZT——F
AB=tH NAZ=Z+H ~A=Z1H NAZ=ZTH ~NAZ=Z+A
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BEE 1,633,577,444 751,912,182 420,931,922 413,614,691 479,416,089
Total liabilities BER (299,667,173) (65,700,698) (48,755,393) (43,894,471) (65,327,650)
Total equity attributable to equity ARAIREREA
holders of the Company [ElE s A5 1,333,910,271 686,211,484 372,176,529 369,720,220 414,088,439
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